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TPURI. BRAMEENSIENSALEBOBSROLIE. 77 Y KORESHMRRTAND] 20% (PHRESIKSE)
Ll EERAI LG NES. BETHRERDTAILTEHREEEELEY, RIMRE AT, BIHRRE
BT KETHY. J7 2 FOREEMEY —EOKECRSIAERHELRFET 500TREL F. T2/ FORME
e FHREER A ECEL TS T LERERENTONS L ETHERRFRITHBOTEBIERA.F2. 5
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AIMS (LT TR UNS 2 AREBA | EWWET . ERSEREUNS A LTI R k- USSR | EhET )
[CBIEEESNET LB A rvh- UNS VAN, BB OERMNES L RMFLEIRRERSBUVELA.
EAMERUN Sy AREAY. R EEOMREES R CEFENASVWIEERRL. LR UNS Y ARBERETS
HREEENBOTEOEENCNGLES NEEENERTEEFICERELEY.
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(BT A EA | EVWET . ), ERECNSOEOMESHO LTINS, BBV ARBAORIRLE
WREENRECIEAEEONA 7 —I AL DWW T . BEEGSE O TR HY ED Ao BTS2 R Y —E s Wi
BEHNAEAOVTNE EEENENAR vk UNS AN EASEORERICETREDHBEESHENIONT
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EECSLTHAERONREEOMNEENBEZUN S ATHEEHITHUEREN HUF T, FTOE R, BDHED
WEECE. Bl EEICIEEL, £ LU P EWLHEBEOY 2—YFRERR~MEET IEEFEL U BE OFERRLEN
UZSHESTEEE A BUET. UNT Y L H44E. BT MEOR{TIRE L At o —, BTN E{LE A, S LTS
UNRSYARBAOMT. SEEIHEONEDCSBINET. MR A A Y — B I E A E s I e
UM YAREBEAOLTNS, DN BEEOREZLIC. —YOUNS AR ETETAEEEELTVE A,
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EETESECIRRNELIFMTNERAETSEOTEEVEE .

o TP FOERHEFOMS |ICHL T3 2R GIE IER37R060ME (WD 37-UV T A D) FERENEE A.

REEH

AINMS AINMSHIRT S8, TNSOMAESHEERTNSOA VN — Ta—Yr— =k Fr—IER. EEBLUT
HEE LT FEBCESVWTHREBEE | EVLVWET. . EROMSOEREPREE. EBICS T 2RA. &2
FEUEON 74— ALV T. LW EAEEEAELEVEDLLET . HRNEER. FEELU EETFVEE
ML THEEEPEZEICELL. WHE SEER, S, SR, S0l L RofasE3tHEic2nTo
BELSEREINET . ARAUEER. 2r FORBIHF 2V TOR—r T+ 27 SERRERC DLW THEE
BI3ZLuMT AN, 7P EOBERICET SEGELRAFOETIE DV THEERS ST LB L. D5,
R4+ . RHCHT3HRATEOESP Y —ERIIDLWT. BRERASZLEFTNEE=FoHY
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GEERAE AETEEH RS R T LA NEREDR R ET IO AN TERT.

(E2) A FUHIC DLW TR EESHOESIRREREEF RN R ERREER NSBSNEUEY,
CES) MBS S B IR LI DA TaEEA MBS, Bl M F RN P 20 (ERR e

VEY.
GRA) FHESE ARRERCRUTEEL S ENFENETY.

s (MEL) FHE

JPUEOEREME

B E A,

R AR E TS R T SR

FrFORAE SHOEE0.69% (LR (XL, Bl s MENOERIEHRMEE LT S0 250008 L UE T ) S LU
MME - FHES DU ESEILENET,

FHRE Zih% HELT DRBEONS i
EEAHEN | 8Psd |y FARONREE. BHEY | BEHE 7 UROBEMENS. Jr UEORRE B
DFAT. MRS DEFO,15%E ERET B(IIEL, FRIBE 1 25,0004K
L) DSBS W EBNT SWEEHLET . D)5k
&, HEH RSN REL SHRILLTRIWDNET,
SHSHER | SHad | JrUROSRER BIELHE. BPRH BT RDLHAWODNS. I
HHHWESAT HMIEELEY,

WERH BERE | JPUEOREOBEREAGRE | SEERAGTLMLE BELNSHT IRELHENOP

{RTEHEN | s o, BEBBLGRTENERNT SHIEELET.

1B BEERET | TP YEARORRERRE RS2 RS BT SRR EMODH S,

iR RABALH EWERHT SHAEALET,

RERSREN | tTE2R | BEREORS. BRI 0%E | RTBERE, Jr U ROBRMENS, 77 FOMIETD
DHAEGEOLE BHE5ES | BOFR0.01XORTHERBMESNT MAEELE
OEBOWESHA~DEIGORE | T. 00 SHEME. SEHRIN. BEL. RS THIL

DNEY.

RESHEN |GEad | BRCSUIBRESONERE. | BEAME. Jr EOEEMENS, J7 Y FORAEENR
W, - MR UOBE 535, BAH | OF R0 SINOETAH AMESHT IMNEELET,
EROERAGWAEDMBIPUY | o ZEMIL, SOHBIN. BEL, GABLLTELD
B.BLUCNSICAMT2XE | N27.

DD Ot T

PR - Fau PO SUSHIESORRCET SMA - FHHIE. WESHCEUROHEFERENSERESN

BUERY, B0 EEEN T TRISNST.

@F DB BF
BHEFOBRICIVECSRRERARFRANSESHET.). SHECIHBIOOFR - EHRA. Wi
ROFRECHDSRA, 77 FCRALTRINDHE, SN EAADENSLURR, 28, Kl MESLUS
SHOBA, BRENCESCERSHADLEL, ABEAN, MBREEEDERSLUR R EBSOMEDR
BOFYABLURE - TOM T7VEOEE, ERGSUTRAICIET 2UAETORORME. 772 EEIER
ELTMEBRICCHIBLEEEET,

TORORA- FUHIOLTE. BRRESCSILNT SLOTHY. BAILHES RS ERRT ST

BALHB0/ 72 —7 VA CREL. MBI 7 FORAEERICEEE S L SRAS L USRS

R SHENECHNSREH AT M. £81 00ERSMERENET.

EOiE SRR RRETEL S 3202 - I FFTHBLU—TARTI I - UP— 2 A THHAL.
MSF«UF - DO LSS FEA I L-UAD - OFO—ILENM O TT . BSOS T, S
ERCHL TR T oL EELE RS ICRE Y S0S IAISN T3 2 ANER I S AU F I
FEENFET. CNSOEMCOEZLTE. BRERREEIERSLETL.

FHHEBLUMASOSHES LU T0 LRSS U CNSOM RS EC W, Zr/ Ol AR e S S OER RS C s T
GRS ETTSILN TR A

721282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 15.315 2038 20
15

15.315

2038 15

20.315 15.315 2038 20
15

73/282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 15.315 2038 20
15
15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038 20

15

74/282



739

774
706
739
739
737
731
739
734
734

784

785

739

751282

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



10
11
12
13
14
15
16

1997

739
739

110

25

25

41

41

76/282

EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25

25



25

33

41

77/282

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25

10

10



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OECD

OECD EU

2015

2015

EU

EU

2015

183
280
30

781282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025
2028

79/282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025
75,414,423 101.08
804,159 1.08
74,610,264
11,156 100.00
2025

LUMINIS Il LTD
0% 3/27/31

2031/ /27 | 92,460,740 | 87,615,797 | 70,011,272 [93.84

LUMINIS 11 LTD
0% 3/27/31 (AUD)

2031/ /27| 11,613,590 | 8,363,278 | 5,403,150 | 7.24

2025

2025
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2025

(021 12 ) 131,832,662 19,712 9.57 1,431 9.18 863
(2022 12 ) 84,265,677 12,599 7.27 1,087 6.82 641
2023 12 82,959,766 12,404 7.43 1,111 7.09 666
2024 12 73,684,548 11,017 7.54 1,127 7.44 699
2024 78,860,661 11,791 7.22 1,080 7.08 665
79,296,380 11,856 7.36 1,100 7.19 676

77,103,115 11,528 7.42 1,109 7.16 673

76,613,857 11,455 7.54 1,127 7.31 687

77,168,300 11,538 7.70 1,151 7.41 696

78,244,208 11,699 7.83 1,171 7.51 706

10 75,282,156 11,256 7.59 1,135 7.27 683

11 75,417,700 11,276 7.65 1,144 7.42 697

12 73,684,548 11,017 7.54 1,127 7.44 699

2025 73,424,714 10,978 7.55 1,129 7.46 701
74,707,263 11,170 7.69 1,150 7.51 706

74,610,264 11,156 7.70 1,151 7.50 705
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13,862,114 1,134,226 12,727,888
13,862,114 1,134,226 12,727,888
0 1,925,165 10,802,722

) (1,925,165) (10,802,722)

0 432,208 10,370,514

(0) (432,208) (10,370,514)
0 1,283,715 9,087,799

) (1,283,715) (9,087,799)
1,687,527 182,600 1,504,927
1,687,527 182,600 1,504,927
0 266,534 1,238,393

0) (266,534) (1,238,393)
0 8,957 1,229,436

0) (8,957) (1,229,436)
0 106,473 1,122,963

0) (106,473) (1,122,963)
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2024 12 31
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
2,6,12
74,537,110 11,144,789
3 104,398 15,610
74,641,508 11,160,398
73,684,548 11,017,314
16 73,684,548 11,017,314
6

5 63,681 9,522
16 - -
11,988 1,792
9 7,520 1,124
4 873,771 130,646
956,960 143,085
74,641,508 11,160,398

16
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DMS 2103
9,087,799 1,122,963
68,488,343 10,240,377 5,196,205 776,937
7.536 1,127 4.627 692
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2023 12 31
DMS 2103
2023 12 31
2,6,12
83,860,833 12,538,872
3 65,709 9,825
83,926,542 12,548,697
82,959,766 12,404,144
16 82,959,766 12,404,144
6

34,196 5,113
5 74,975 11,210
9 7,430 1,111
4 850,175 127,118
966,776 144,552
83,926,542 12,548,697
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DMS 2103
9 10,370,514 1,229,436
16 77,007,888 11,514,219 5,951,878 889,925
7.426 1,110 4.841 724
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5,14

16
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DMS 2103
2024 12 31
5,632 842
1,360,918 203,484
1,366,550 204,327
(415,968) (62,196)
(75,213) (11,246)
(63,081) (9,432)
(554,262) (82,873)
812,288 121,453
812,288 121,453
812,288 121,453

16



2023 12 31

5,14

11

10
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DS 2103
2023 12 31
3,564 533
2,509,645 375,242
2,513,209 375,775
(435,175) (65,067)
(123,163) (18,415)
(182,571) (27,298)
(740,909) (110,781)
1,772,300 264,994
1,772,300 264,994
1,772,300 264,994
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2024 12 31
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
82,959,766 12,404,144
(10,087,506) (1,508,284)
812,288 121,453
73,684,548 11,017,314
2023 12 31
DMS 2103
2023 12 31
84,265,677 12,599,404
(3,078,211) (460, 254)
1,772,300 264,994
82,959,766 12,404,144
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2024 12 31
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
812,288 121,453
3,269,735 488,891
(4,630, 653) (692,375)
10,684,641 1,597,568
29,485 4,409
(62,987) (9,418)
23,596 3,528
10,126,105 1,514,055
(10,087, 416) (1,508,270)
(10,087,416) (1,508,270)
38,689 5,785
65,709 9,825
104,398 15,610
16
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2023 12 31
DS 2103
2023 12 31
1,772,300 264,994
1,346,361 201,308
(3,856,006) (576,550)
3,491,500 522,049
425 64
(4,796) 717)
63,939 9,560
123,178 18,418
2,936,901 439,125
(3,072,974) (459,471)
(3,072,974) (459,471)
(136,073) (20, 346)
201,782 30,170
65,709 9,825
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2024 12 31
1990
2020
35
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07 2020 28
DMS 2103 2021 30
One-Day 2023 12
DMS 2020 07
2020 28
2025 25
DMS 2103 10
2021 30
2031 31
One-Day 10 2023 12

2033 31
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102
FRS102
1990
FRS102
AIFM
DMS 2020 07
2025 25
50,000
12
FRS102
AIFM
12
DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day
2023

)
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One-Day
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2023 12 31

2020 07
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,008 7,645
(260,547) (613,161)
(257,539) (605,516)
(903) (121)
3,270,363 3,975,963
3,269,460 3,975,842
3,011,921 3,370,326

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
4,766 2,363

(3,274,501)

(1,348,724)

(3,269,735)

(1,346,361)

(250) (302)
4,630,903 3,856,308
4,630,653 3,856,006
1,360,918 2,509,645




One-Day
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
64,045 103,127
(2,742,077) (2,435)
154,660 197,237
(174,758) (199,917)
1,705,645 33,969
(992,485) 131,981
(856,509) 943,860
(628,987) (1,231)
1,928,101 971,973
442,605 1,914,602
(549,880) 2,046,583
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1997 739

1997 739

1997

DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31

210
19,707
82,667

102,584

2023 12 31

188

BNP 21,537
JP 54,966
76,691
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2024 12 31

412
9,781
94,205
104,398

2023 12 31

217
9,385
56,107
65,709

2024 12 31

(223,437)
107
(223,330)

2023 12 31

1,515
37,013
38,528

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

44,497 35,550
1,206 637
12,765 5,134

58,468 41,321




DMS 2103
One-Day
0.15
2020 07
155,000
2024 12
2020 07
115,240
DMS 2103
31 123,163
One-Day
25,834 2023 12 31
DMS
10,587
DMS
DMS 2103
One-Day

2024 12 31
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
854,167 845,024
1,680 1,124
17,924 4,027
873,771 850,175
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
42,798 -
29,431 6,630
307 11
7,002 3,012
79,538 9,653
DMS
DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day
31 DMS
129,290 2023 12 31
30,446 2023 12 31 47,104
75,213 2023 12
11,988 2023 12 31 74,975
155,000 2023 12 31 46,713
46,713 2024 12 31
2103
41,666 125,000
2020 07
0.53
0.80
DMS
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2020 07 391,147 2023 12 31
407,182 63,925 2023 12 31 33,755 DMS
2103 415,968 2023 12 31
435,175 63,681 2023 12 31 34,196 One-
Day 442,584 2023 12 31 120,239 62,813 2023
12 31 39,178
10 0.04 15
0.035 25 0.03
0.01
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
7,380 2023 12 31 7,685 1,206 2023 12 31 637
DMS 2103
7,849 2023 12 31 8,211 1,680 2023 12 31 1,124
One-Day 5,532 2023 12 31 1,503
307 2023 12 31 11
36,524 2023 12 31 36,943
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
25,000 DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day 165,000
One-Day 16,387 2023 12 31 145,000
2024 12 31 One-Day
98,413 2023 12 31 130,447 2024 12
31 DMS 2020 07

DMS 2103
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2103
854,167
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2023 12 31 DMS 2103
2103
DMS
29,976 2023 12 31 163,519
2023 12 31 845,024
12 31 2023 12 31
DNIS DNIS one-0a
2020 07 2103 y
2024 12 31 2024 12 31 2024 12 31
- - 46,294,082
73,313,987 74,537,110 -
_ - 87,351
73,313,987 74,537,110 46,381,433
- - 630,218
- - 630,218
DNS DN
2020 07 2103 One-Day
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31
- - 59,636,333
75,487,222 83,860,833 -

943,860
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75,487,222 83,860,833 60,580,193
- - 1,231
- - 1,231
One-Day
2024 12 31
87,351 (87,351) - - -
46,294,082 - - - 46,294,082
46,381,433 (87,351) - - 46,294,082
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630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
2023 12 31
943,860 (1,231) - - 942,629
59,636,333 - - - 59,636,333
60,580,193 (1,231) - - 60,578,962
1,231 (1,231) - - _
1,231 (1,231) - - -
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07 DMS
2103
10 150,000
10 200,000
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0.01 0.01
One-Day
10 150,000
10 150,000

1,000 150,000,000

1,000 150,000,000

DMS

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

7,327,416 1,334,915 7,935,866 1,395,373

(453,615) (71,434) (608, 450) (60,458)

120/282



EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
ooooodooodooooooodd

6,873,801 1,263,481 7,327,416 1,334,915
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1,238,393
(1,282,715) (106,473) (432,208) (8,957)
9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1,229,436
One-Day
2024 12 31
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
1,052,879 219,090 212,751 2,571
(649,136) (91,377) (2,176,476) (904,288)
2,732,910 355,005 1,827,705 233,753
2023 12 31
2,359,703 227,292 4,214,764 1,135,470
(30,536) - (423,334) -
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
2024 12 31 DMS
2020 07 28,710 2023 12
31 DMS 2103 7,520
2023 12 31 7,430 One-Day 66,846 2023 12
31
10
DMS 2020 07 DMS

2103
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One-Day
2024 12 31 DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day 345,338 2023 12 31 81,820
11
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
12,238 26,001
7,380 7,685
16,630 -
36,248 33,686
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
29,976 163,519
7,849 8,211
25,256 10,841

63,081 182,571
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12.
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7,331,399
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
122,340 9,041
22,801 6,630
5,485 -
5,532 1,503
10,474 3,631
166,632 20,805
10
2020 07
7,548,722 DMS 2103
7,453,711 2023 12 31 8,386,083 One-Day

2023 12 31 5,963,633 10
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(D)

31

A+

2024 12 31

AIFM
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BBH

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31

AIFMD

BBH
BBH
BBH

A+ 2023 12
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A 2023 12 31 A

2024 12 31
MFS
DOT DOT MFS
UBO DOT
1,000
2024 12 31
(e)
One-Day
One-Day
A+ 2023 12

31 A+
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Q)
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
7,657,072 65,759,499 73,416,571
- (231,549) (231,549)
7,657,072 65,527,950 73,185,022
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,485,702 67,078,211 75,563,913
- (122,180) (122,180)
8,485,702 66,956,031 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
5,375,535 69,276,560 74,641,508
- (967,547) (956,960)

5,375,535 68,309,013 73,684,548
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2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
6,102,801 77,823,741 83,926,542
- (966,776) (966,776)
6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959,766
One-Day
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
87,458 46,686,025 46,773,483
(630,218) (458,468) (1,088,686)
(542,760) 46,227,557 45,684,797
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
1,298,734 60,131,969 61,430,703
(1,231) (725,797) (727,028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 60,703,675
2024 12 31
2020 07
382,854 2023 12 31 424,285 DMS 2103
268,777 2023 12 31 305,140
2024 12 31
One-Day 27,138 2023 12 31
64,875
)
FRS102 2A.1
2016 FRS 34.22
IFRS 13 GAAP
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
2023 12 31
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
2023 12 31
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
One-Day
2024 12 31
- 46,294,082 - 46,294,082
- 87,351 - 87,351
- 46,381,433 - 46,381,433
- 630,218 - 630,218
- 630,218 - 630,218
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2023 12 31
- 59,636,333 - 59,636,333
- 943,860 - 943,860
- 60,580,193 - 60,580,193
- 1,231 - 1,231
- 1,231 - 1,231
FRS102
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
75,487,222 78,322,261
(5.185,719) (6,204,569)
(258, 338) (606, 433)
3,270,822 3,975,963
73,313,987 75,487,222
2024 12 31
3,665,699 2023 12 31 3,774,361
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
83,860,833 84,842,688
(10,684,130) (3,490,121)
(3,270,710) (1,348,042)
4,631,117 3,856,308
74,537,110 83,860,833
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2024 12 31
3,726,856 2023 12 31 4,193,042
GS
13.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1.6086 1.4655
1.0394 1.1039
157.2000 140.9800
14.
2024 12 31
2023 12 31 AIFM
IE
IE FRS102
IE
IE 2024 11
2025 31
IE UK
2024 29

2025 31
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15.
IE
16.
FRS102
DMS 2020 07 2025 25
50,000
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,185,022 75,441,733
50,000 -
73,235,022 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,684,548 82,959,766
- 57,231

73,684,548 83,016,997
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17.

2024 12 31

18.

DMS

2024 12 31

19.
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
45,684,797 60,703,675
98,413 130,447
45,783,210 60,834,122
2024 29
2024 11
2025 31
2025 31
2020 07 2025 25
50,000

2025 11
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2024 12 31

DMS 2103

2023 12 31 101.09

93,437,040 69,171,441 93.88
11,662,390 5,365,669 7.28
74,537,110 101.16

(852,562) (1.16)
73,684,548 100.00
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position
Asat 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturdsy IS Target Maturicy
Setiing Fund 203407 Setting Fund 2108

(Iwesting in Goldman  (Ievesting ks Gol dnaan Ome-Day
Sads Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporote Bonds) Premimm Fund
Asat As at As at
31 December 2124 31 Becembver 1024 31 December 2024
Notes UsD USD USD
Current Assets
Financial assds at far value through
profit or loss 26,12
Total Retum Basket Swaps . - 46,294,082
Performance-linked Notes 73,313,087 74837110 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Forerzn Currency Confracts - - £7.351
Cash 3 102,584 104,398 107
Receivable for investments sold - - 3467
Receivable for Fund Units sold . . 360,476
Total Current Assels 73,416,571 Td.641,508 46,773,453
Equity
Met assels attributable to Unitholders 73,185,023 73,684,548 45,684,797
Total Equity 16 73,185,022 73,684,548 45,684,797
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities & fair value
through profit or loss 6
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - - 630,218
Bank: overdrafl 3 . - 223,437
Digritation fiees pavable 5 63,925 63,681 62,813
Liquidation cosis payable® 16 50,000 - -
AIFM fees payable 5 30,4446 11,988 25,83
Payable for Units repurchased ] 28,710 7,520 B, 346
Cther payable 4 58 468 873,771 79538
Total Curreni Liabilities 231,549 B56,9460 1,085, 656
Total Equity and Corrent Liabilities 73,416,571 74,641,506 46,773,453

*Represents a provision for estimaded costs to be incumed in the liquidation of the sub-fund. Refer to Note 16,

The accompanying notes form an ntegral pant of these financial statements,

13

135/282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Duocusign Ervelope I SCT42TFC-B4BS4 TEE-SEOM-DBO44 O0F 3510,

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

Asat 31 December 2024

IS Targes Matwrity DAL Targee Matarity

Setting Fund 2020207 Setting Fund 2103

(Ewventing in Galdman Sadia (Investimg bn Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bomds) Corporate Bods)

sD AUTY UsD ALTY

Undt Class Umit Class Undt Class Unit Class

MNumber of Uniis in [ssue 9 6,573,301 1,263,481 9087, 79 1,122,963

Met Asset Value per Unit Class (USI) 16 65,774, 350¢ TAGDATI® 68,488,343 5,196,205

MNet Assel Value per Unit (LISD) S560" 5.805" 1536 4627
Crve- Dy
Premium Fund
L ] UsD JPY JPY
Acoummdating M onihly Acoummulating Alaauthiy
Unit Class Distribwtion Umit Class Dviveribution
Unit Class Undt Class
MNumber of Unfits in Issme 9 2732910 355,005 1,827,705 233,753
Met Asset Value per Unit Class (USD) 16 29,169,371 3,560,158 11,537,467 1,408,301

MNet Assel Value per it (LISDY) 10.673 1,054 6313 6,027
*Represents Net Asset Vahae per Unit Class for Unitholder dealing purposes.
" Bepresents Net Asset Valae per Unit for Unithalder dealing puiposes,

Signed on behalfof Waystone Management Company (IE ) Limited

o (%

e EAA R LT R

Date: 11 June 2025

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial staements.

14
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

TNVIS Target Maturity  DMS Target Maturity

Setiing Fand 202007 Setting Fand 2103
{lwwestlng bn Goldman  (Iavesting bn ol dman Cmie-Day
Sadhs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bands) Premdum Fuand®
As ol Asat As
31 December 2023 31 December 1023 31 December 2023
MNoles UsD USD USD
Corrent Assels
Financial assets ai far value through
profit or loss 26,12
Total Ketum Basket Swaps - - 59,636,333
Performance-linked Notes 75487 322 831860833 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - - Q3 80
Cash 3 76,691 63,709 18,518
Eeeceivable for Fund Units sold - - 737,707
Other receivable : . 74.275
Total Current Assels 75,563,913 53,926,542 61,430,703
Equity
Met assets attributable to Unitholders 75,441,733 82950766 60,703,675
Total Equity 16 75,441,733 51,959,766 60,703,675
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss i
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumrency Contracts . - 1.231
Disritation fees pavable 5 33,7558 34,196 19178
AIFM fees payvable 5 47,104 T4.975 46,713
Organisational expense payable - - 13448
Payable for Units repurchased & - 7430 -
Payable for invesments purchased 2 - - 616,805
Other payzble 4 41.321 850,175 9,653
Total Current Liabilities 122,180 966,776 T27.028
Total Eqguity and Corrent Linbilities 75,563,913 53,926,542 61,430,703

*The sub-fund lmmched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an mtegral pant of these financial statements,

15
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

DM Targes Matwrity IS Target Manarity
Setting Fund 2020207 Setting Fund 2103
(Evesting in Galdman Sadia (Investimg bn Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bomds) Corporate Bods)
s AUy Usn ALY
Undt Class Umibt Class Undt Class Unkt Class
MNumber of Uniis in [ssue 9 7327416 1,334,915 10,370,514 1,229.436
MNet Assel Yalue per Unit Class (USD) 16 67,111,564 8,329,869 77007, 558 5,951,878
Met Asset Value per Unit {LISD) 2159 6240 Tl 4841
Crnve- Dy
Premium Fand®
=D Ush JPY JPY
Acoummdlating M onihly Acoummulating Alaauthiy
Uit Class Diseribastion Umit Class Drixeribudion
Unit Class Undt Class
Number of Units in Issme 9 2329167 227,92 379143 1135470
Met Asset Value per Unit Olass (USD) 16 23642483 2,279,803 16,824,532 1.956,557
Net Assel Value per LU'nit (LS 10151 10,030 7075 7.007

*The ab-fund lnsched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanying noles form an integral pant of these financial staements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturdey DS Target Maturky
Setiing Fund 20407 Setting Fund 7103

(Inwvesilng in Goldman  (Investlng kn Goldman Ome-Day
Sadus Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Preminm Fand
For the financial year  For the fnandal year For ihe fMinancial year
ended ended ended
31 December 224 31 December 2024 E1 December 2024
Motes Ush Usp Ustx
Incomse
Interest income 4,007 5,632 16,911
Other meome - - 2689
Met gaind{ boss) on financial asses o fair
vahue through profit or loss T 3,011,921 1. 360918 (545, 8800
Total Net Income/{Loss) 3015928 1,366,550 (530,250
ThSES
Disdribution Fees 5 (351,147} (15, 568) (442,584)
AIFM fees 514 (129,290} (75.213) (155,000
Organisational expenses 5 - . {16,387)
Liquidation costs provision™ 165 i 50,0040} . .
Other expenses 11 {36,248} (63,081 ) (166.63F)
Total Operating Expenses {606, 655) (554,262) (TR0, 603)
MNet Operating Profit/(Loss)
bhefore Finance Cost and Tax 2 .409243 812288 {1,310,853)
Finance Costs
Dignbutions o Unitholders 10 - - (345.335)
Met Operating Profit/(Loss) 2409243 312,288 {1.656.221)
Total Comprehensive Profit/{ Loss) 2,409,243 812,288 (1.656,221)

*Represenis a provision for estimaded cosfs o be incumred in the liguidation of the sub-fund. Refer 1o Note 16,

Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations except for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund
2020-07 (Inveding in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds).

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Compr chensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2023

DM Target Mamrity  DMS Target Mataricy

Setting Fond 202007 Setting Fumd 2105
{Iwesting bn Goldman  (Tnvesting b Goldman Chae-Day
S ncha Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premdum Fund®
For the inancial year  For the fnandal year  For the fnandal period
ended ended ended
31 Decemiber 2023 31 Decamber 20EL 51 Decamber 2023
Notes UsD UsDp USDy
Income
Interest income 4,150 3504 18,015
Met gain on Fmancial assets ol far value
through profit or loss z 3,370,326 2.500.645 2.046.583
Total Net Ineomme 3374476 2,513,208 2.064.598
Expenses
Distritaition fees 5 {407 183) [435,175) (120,239
AIFM fees 5 14 {115,240} {123,163) (46,713)
Crrganisational expenses 5 - - (145,000
Cither expenses 11 {33,686 [182 571} {200,805
Total Operating Expenses {556, 108) {740, ) {332.757)
Met Operating Proflt before Finance
Cost and Tax 1,518,368 1,772,300 1.731.541
Finance Cosls
Disribations to Unitholders 10 - - (§1.820)
Met Cperating Profit 2818368 1,772,300 1,650,021
Total Comprehensive Profit 2.518.368 1,772,300 1,650,021

*The aub-fumd lmmched on 12 September 2023,
Income and expenses aro=e solely from continuing operations,

Theere are no recognised gains and losses other than these shown in the Statement of Comprehensive ncome.

The accompanving notes form an integral pan of these financial stalements,

I8
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

DAS Target M aturity 1005 Target Maturity
Seiting Fand 2020-07 Sefting Fund 2108
(Inveaing in Geldman Sachs (Investing in Goldman Sachs Ome-Day
Corperate Bonds) Corporate Bomds) Preminm Fand
Far il Mnancial year ended For the Maanclal year ended For the Mnancal year ended
X1 Decennbeer 20024 51 Decembeer 2024 51 Decembver 2024
USDy UsSD e H
Opening Net Assets altributable to
Unitholders 75,441,733 §521,.959.766 6k, 73,675
Procesds of Units issued . . 14,657,091
Payment for Units redeemed (4,665,954} (10,087 506} (28,019,748}
Met inerease/ decresse) in Met Assels
atiributable to Unithol ders from
operations 2400, 243 812,288 (1.656221)
Closing MNet Assels attributable to
Unitholders 73,185,022 73,684,548 45,684,797

The accompanying notes form an imtegral pan of these financial stalements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2023

Ooooooooooooooooooad

DMS Target Mamurity DMS Target Muiurkty
Setiing Fund 52007 Seviing Fund 2103 Ome-Day
{Iavesting bn Geldman Sachs{Iwectlng bn Goldman Sachs Preimtduimy Fumd®
Corperate Bonds) Corporate Bomds) For ihe finmmclal period
For the Mnandial year ended For the Mimancial yer ended emded
51 Decrmber 2015 31 December 2023 51 December 2023
UsD UsD s
Opening MNet Assets attributable to
Unitholders 78,428,757 84,265,677 =
Proceeds of Units issued - - 62,192 4040
Payment for Units redeemed (5,806, 35%2) (3,078,211} (3138746}
Mel increase in Met Assets
atributable to Unitholders from
operations 2,818,368 1772300 1,650,021
Closing Met Assets atiributable to
Unithodders 75,441,733 §2 959, Th6 60,703,675

*The sub-fumd lamched on 12 Sepiember 2023,

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturdty  DM$ Target Maturity

Setting Fund 2020-07 Seiting Fund 2108
(Inwesting in Goldman  (Inveiting in Goldman Chve- Thay
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bends) Premdum Fund
For ihe financlal year  For ilee finandal year  For the Mnanclal year
emied emndied eimded
31 December 2024 31 December 2024 31 Drecember 2024
UsD Usn Usn

Cash Flows from Opéeratdng Activities
Incremse/(Decrease) in Total Comprebensive
Profi{Loss) 2409243 #1226 {1.656.221)
Adjusments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Met realsed foreign exchange loss on finmcial mesets

and financiad libil#ties 157,539 3.269.735
et realmed loss on Farwamd Fcrriﬁn l:'.'l.n'rm.t",.'

Contracts . . 26TEG2
Wet pealwed loss on Fnr\n'-,_w. {'.'nmrll:'!,r “Trandabions - - 20098
Net realised {gnam) on Total Retum Basket Swaps . . (1,705,645}

Met chimge in unrealised appreciation on fmancinl
assets and liabilties at faar vahie through profit or

loes {3,269 4600 (4.630,653) =
Met change in unrenlissd mpprecintion on Todnl

Hetum et Swaps - - (1,925,101}
Met change in unrealised deprecintion on Faremrd

Foreign Currency Coniracts - - 1485 A%
Sale of finengial assets wnd labildies af fair valoe

through profit or loss 5185136 10684641 14,277,867
Distributicns to Unithelders . . 345,338
{Inerense) m receivable for investments sold - - (31,467}
Diecrease i other receivable . . 74,275
Incresse in distribution fee payable 30,170 20 488 23635
(Decrease ] in AIFM fee payable {16,658) (62 O8T) (20,879}
{Decrense] in organisafional fee payable - - {13.448)
Incresse in lguidation costs payvable® 50,000 -
(Decrease] in payable for investments purchased - - (616,805}
Incremse in other payable 17,147 23,598 [
Med Cash Flow from Opernting Acivities 4,663,137 10,1 26,105 13,002,060
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Digtributions to Unitholders - - (3435,338)
Proceeds of Tnats saved - - 15,034,322
Payment for Units redeemed 4,637,244} (10,087,816} {1T.052.902)
MNet Cash Flow out of Finencing Adivites {4,637.244) (10,057 4146) (15.263.918)
Net Inerease{Decrease) In Cash and Cash

Equivalents 25,895 35,659 (261.85%)
Cash and cash equivadents at the begmnmg of the

finmicinl year Th 691 65 TO9 38,528
Cagh and Cash Equivalenis at the end of

the Bnancisl year 102,554 104,398 (225.33m)

*Represenis aprovision for estimaded costs to be incumred in the liquidation of the sub-fund. Refer to Mote 16

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements,
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Cash Flows from Operatng Activities

Incresse in Total Comprehensive Profi/{L oss)

Adjustments to reconcile ned income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Met realsed foreign exchange loss on financial assets
and finaneial liobiliies

MWet realised (gain ) on Forward Foreign Comency
Contracts

Met realized loss on Foreign Currency Translations

Met realmed (gain ) on Total Returmn Bagcet Swaps

Net change in unrenlised nppreciation on fmamcial
assets and liabiltiies a far value through profit or
loss

Met change i unrealized appreciation on Total
Fetum Basdiet Swaps

Met change in unrealised appreciation on Forvard
Forergn Ciorency Condracts

Sale/(Purchase ) of financinl asscte end liabilities o
fair vadue through profit or loss

Distnibuticns to Unitholders

Decrense in receivable for myvestments sold

Decrease/{Inerease) in ctber receivable

{ Decrease VIncrease in dignbution fee payable

Increase in ATFM fee payable

Incresse in ofgan isdional fee payvable

Ingresse in payable for vestments parchased

Increase in other payvable

Met Cash Flow from {eut ofy Operating Activitles
Cash Flows (sut of) frem Finsncng Actvities
Distnbutiens to Unitholders

Proceeds of Units isued
Payment for Units redeemed

Net Cash Flow (out of) Trom Finandng Acthdties

Ned (Decrease)/Inoresse in Cach and Cash
Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the
financial yearperiod

Cash and Cash Equivalenis at the end of
the Hnuneinl yeur period

*The sub-fund lnmched on 12 September 2023,

DM Target Maturdty  DMS Target Marurity
Setting Fund 202007 Setting Fond 2103
(Tivesting in Caldman  (Taveating in Goldman Chiie-Dhay
Suchs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporote Bends) Premdum Fund*
For the linandal year  For the finandal year For the Minandal period
emiled emided emiled
31 December 2023 31 Decamber 2OEX 11 December F02R
5D 5D UsD
1,818,368 1,772,300 16500021
605516 1,346,361 -
{100,692)
2680
(33,969}
{3,975, 842} {3.856,006) -
(971,973}
(S42629)
6,205,565 FA91,500 {S8,332.379)
- - B1820
8927 . s
13463 425 (T4, 275)
{1,643) (4,796 ) 39178
37,085 63,5935 46,713
- - 13448
. . 616,505
14,942 123,174 9,653
5,526,151 2,936,901 {58,195 599)
(81,820}
- - 61454, 693
(5. 816,801} {3.072.974) {3.138.7T46)
(£.816.651) (5.072.974) 58,204,127
30,710 (136,075} 38,528
167401 201,782 -
Th,691 65,709 38,528

The accompanying noles form an integral pant of these financial staements.

[ 2%
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes 1o the Awdited Financial Statements
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust {the *Trust”} was constituted as an Irish umbrella Unit Trust organised
by the Manager and the Trustee under the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the *Act” ) on 3 June 2020, with the
Fegistered Office at 4th Floor, 35 Shelbourne Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4. Ireland. The Trust is
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursuant to the Act.

The Trust iz an umbrella fond which may comprise different sub-funds, respectively (thesub-fund” or
together, the “sub-funds") each with one or more Classes of Unitz, Each sub-fund may be constited
as an open-ended fund. an open-ended fund with limited liquidity or a closed-ended fund.

Asat 31 December 2024, the Trust had three sub-funds in existence:

Commenced Operations

DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman

Sachs Corporate Bomds) 28 July 2020
DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bonds) 30 March 2021
Cme-Day Premium Fund 12 September 2023

First two sub-funds offer two Unit Classes, the USD Unit Class and the AUD Umit Class, The third
sub-fund offers four Unit Classes, the USD Accumulating Unit Class, the USD Monthly Distnbution
Unit Class (together the "U'SD Unit Classes™), the JPY Accomulating Unit Class and the JFY Monthly
Distribution Unit Class (together the “JFY Unit Claszes™). The USD Monthly Distibution Unit Class
and the JPY Monthly Distribation Unit Class (the *Monthly Distribution Unit Classes™) aims o pay
dividends to Umitholders. The Functional Currency of the sub-funds are United States Dollar (*USD™),
as detailed in Wote 2 of the financial statements on page 30,

DM S Targel Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) 1= a Uit
Trust with a trust term of approximately five vears. The trust term refers to the pericd from the
commencement of operation on 28 July 2020 to Fund Maturity Date (“Maturity Date™). The Maturity
Date s 25 July 2025 or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and notified (o
Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fimd expires and all remaining Units are
redeemed.

DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) 12 a Unit
Trust with a trust term of approximately ten vears, The trud teom refers to the period from the
commencement of operation on 30 March 2021 to Fund Matunty Date, The Msturity Date is 31 March
2031 or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and notified to Unitholders, being the
date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaining Units are redeemed.

Cme-Day Premium Fund is 8 Unit Trust with a trost term of approximately ten years. The trust term
refers to the period from the commencement of operation on 12 September 2023 to Fund Matunty Date
(“Maturity Drate™). The Matority Date is 31 August 2033 or such other date as may be determined by
the Manager and notified 1o Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and
all remaining Units are redeemed.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted by the sub-funds are as follows;

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the sub-funds have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
freland” ("FRS 1027), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and [rish gatute comprizsing
the Unit Trost Act, 1990,

The format and cenain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from these contained in
FRS 102 so that, in the opinion of the Alternative Investment Fund Manager (the “ ATFM™), they more
appropriately reflect the nature of the sub-funds' buginess as an investment funds.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, except for the financial
statements of DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) which has been prepared on a basis other than the going concern as the sub-fund will be put
into liquidation after the 25 July 2023, Liquidation cost expenses expected to be incwmred upon closure
of the sub-fund are expecied to amonnt 1o USE 50,000 and have been accrued for in these financial
satements. The Directors have made an assessment ofthe Trust"s ability to continoe a3 a going concern
and are satisfied that the Trust has the resources to comtinue in operation for a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reponed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The
AIFM believes that the estimates utilised in financial statements are reazonable amnd prodent. Actual
resilts could differ from these estimates. Please refer to Note 12 {g) for Fair Value Estimation
disclosures.

Invesiment policy

DME Target Maturity Sefting Fund 2020407 (fnvesting in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) amd DAMS
Targes Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Tnvesting in Goldman Sachs Covporate Bonds)

In onder to achieve its investment objective, the sub-funds will invest all of the proceeds from the issue
of Units (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the
gub-funds and the offenng of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses payable out of the
assets of the sub-funds) in centzan performance-linked notes (the *Notes” ) 1o be issued by Luminis 11
Limited, special purpose vehicle domiciledinthe Cayman Islands {the “Motes Issuer”). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose is to conduct business such as the 1ssuance of bonds, mnd are
generally used in the securitisation of assets and the issuance of srctured notes,

The Nates will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the following exposures;

1. Exposzure to a porfolio of fixed income instruments (the “G5 Bondz" } issued by The Goldman
Sachs Group, Ine (the “G3 Bonds 12ener” ) and denominmted in the curency of the relevant
Class of Umits (the “Fixed Portion™ i and

2. Exposure to a synthetic pon fodio which provides a return which is linked to the performance of
a basket of centain investment funds (the * Acdive Portion™ or the * Strategy™).
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment policy (Continued)

DME Targe! Manurity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) amnd DMS
Targer Maturfty Setting Fund 2103 (fnvesting i Goldman Seclis Corpovate Boneds) (Contineed)

The Strategy consists of a number of investment funds (the "Underlving Funds") having individual
strategies and cash minus necessary cosls Lo compose a basket, and aims for fable excess returns n
vanous environments. The weightings to be allocated to each Underlying Fund wall be determined
upon launch in order to ensure that the nsk level is equally distibuted between the Underlying Funds
{the “Underlving Basket™).

Cne-Diay Premivm Fud

In order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-find will generally invest all of the proceeds from
the iszue of Units {after deduction of cosis and expenses) in one or more total retum swaps (each a
“Total Renrn Swap” ) to be traded with Goldman Sachs International Bank: (the * Swap Counterpany™ )
pursuant Lo a swap agreement (the *Swap Agreement’™ ).

The Total Retum Swap will be a fAully-funded swap and will provide the sub-fond with exposure to the
Strategy, 85 described in the Supplement to the Prospectus dated % August 2023, The sub-fund's
exposure to the Total Return Swap will be (i) increased in the event that the sub-fund receives net
snhacriptions and (i) decreased in the event that the sub-fund receives net redemptions, on a paricular
Subscrption Day / Redemption Day. The performance of the sub-fund will be determined by the
performance of the Strategy.

In addition to entening into the Total Return Swap, the sub-fund may hold cash pending investment,
the retumn of monies to investors of io allow the sub-tfund o meet cenain ongoing charges and expenses
which may arige in the course of operations of the sub-fumd.

The sub-fund may accept collateral in the context of the Total Return Basket Swap, Such collateral
will be of an appropriate type for the given transaction and the particular counterpany and may be in
the form of cash or debt. For details of the non-cash collateral received by the sub-fund at the 31
December 2024, refer 1o Appendix 111 to these financial statements.

The Investment Manager intends (o hedge the foreign currency exposure of the JFY Unit Classes in
ofder that mvestors in such classes receive retums substantially in line with that which would be
achieved in the Functional Cwrrency. The financial instroments used to implement such strategies will
be assets [ habilites of the sub-fund as 2 whole, However, such transactions will be cleardy attributable
to the relevant JPY Unit Class and the gains / losses on and the costs of the relevant financial
instruments will accme solely to the relevant JPY Unit Class,

Accounting for Investments

[nvestment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses on sales of
investments are calculated om a “first in - first ow™ (“FIFO™) basis. The associated foreign exchange
movements between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets are included in
?el gain on financial assetz at fair value throwgh profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
NCOME.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments

Om initial application of FRS 102, in accomnting for its financial instruments a reponting entity is
required to apply either ajthe full requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instraments and
Cher Financial Instruments, by the recognition and measurement provisions of [AS 3% Financial
Instruments: Recogmition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or ¢) the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standard (" IFRS"} 9 Financial Instroments and only the disclosure
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instmments and Other Financial Instruments. The
sub=funds have chosen to implement b) the recognition and measurement provision of I1AS 39 Financial
Instruments; Recogmnition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instraments and Other Financial Instroments.

In accordance with FRS 102 the sub-funds have classified all of it invesiments az financial asseis or
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. Investments are initially recognised at the fair
value of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recogmsed ditectly
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair value at
the financial year end. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date — the date on
which the sub-funds commit (o purchase or gell the asset.

Foreign exchange hedzing may be wtilised for the benefit of a particular Hedged Class and 1ts cost and
related liabilities and'or benefitz shall be for the accommt of such Class only, Accordingly, any
appreciaiion or deprecialion of the Net Assel Value of the sub-funds resuliing from expenses, income,
gains and losses that are attmbtable to any foreign exchange hedzing in respect of a Hedged Class
shall be attributable solely to the Hedged Class to which it relates,

The value of the assets of each sub-funds shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Date as
follows:

{a)  securities, including debt and equity secunties, which are quoted, listed or traded on or under
the mles of any market will be valued af the closing bid price as at each Valuation Point. If the
securty is normally quated, listed or traded on or under the rules of more than one market, the
relevant market will be that which Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (the
“Manager”) determine provides the fairest criterion of value for the security, If prices for a
secunity quoted, listed or traded on the relevant market are not available at the relevant time or
are unrepresentative in the opindon of the Manager such security will be valued at such value
as will be estimated with care and good fath as the probable realisation value of such security
by the Manager,

(b} any security, including debt and equity securities, which is not nommally quoted, listed or
traded on or under the mules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines that
the closing bid price as set out above is not representative of its fair market valoe, will be
valued at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager. The performance linked notes hald are priced on a daily basis by a price received
from Goldman Sachs;
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

WValuation of Investments (Conlinued)

{ch derivative instruments inchiding swaps, inferest rate futures contracts and other financial
futures contracts which are traded on a market will be valued at the settlement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of business on that market on the Valustion
Date, provided that where it is not the practice of the relevant market to quote a settlement
price, or if a settlement price is not available for any reason, such instruments will be valued
at their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Mmnager. The
Total Return Basket Swaps are valeed using prices provided daily by the Swap Counterparty,
without adjustment.

(d} credit default swap instruments which are noi dealt on a market will be valued on each
Valustion Date at the evalumed mean by reference to freely available market quotations
supplied by an independent pricing agent of af the price obtained from the counterparty or a
party appointed by the Manager, All other denvanve instruments which are not dealt on a
market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the bid price by reference to freely available
market quotations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price obtained from the
counterpany or a party appointed by the Manager,

(e} Units in collective mvestment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published MNet
Asset Value of such Units, If such prices are unavailable, the Units will be valned at their
probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager,

(i assets denominated in a cumency other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant sub-
fund shall be converted into the Functional Cumency at the rate (whether official or otherwise )
which the Manager deems appropriate in the circumsiances;

(gl cash deposits and similar assets will be valued at their face valug together wirh accroed inferest
unless in the opinion of the Maager any adjustment should be made to reflect the Fair value
thergof, and

(I realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between
disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost. Realised and unrealized gains and losses on
investments arising dunng the financial year are dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income,

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Cne-Dray Preminm Fund may enter into Forwand Foreign Currency Contract in connection with
settling planned purchases or sales of =ecurities o hedge the currency exposure associated with some
or all of a sub-fund's securities of as a part of an investment strategy. A Forwand Foreign Currency
Contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a cumency at a set price on a future date.
The fair value of a Forward Foreign Cumrency Contract fluctuates with changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts are marked to market daily and the change in
value ig recorded by the sub-fund as an unrealised gain or loss, Realised gains or losses equal to the
difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opéned and the value at the time it was
closed are recorded wpon delivery or receipt of the cumency or, ifa Forward Foreign Currency Contract
15 offset by entering into another Forward Foreign Cumency Contract with the same broker, upon
zeftlement of the net gain or loss,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting
Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net amous reported in the Statement of Financial

Position when there was a legally enforceable nght to offset the recogmsed amonnts and there s an
intention to seitle on a net bagis or realize the azzet and settle the hability simultaneously.

Asof 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, none of the financial assets and habiliies are offset
in the Staement of Financial Position,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

MNet gain/{loss) on Mnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD USD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 3008 7,645
Realized {loss ) on investments and foreign exchange {260,547 (613.161)
Total net realised (loss) (257,539 (605,516)
{Decreaze) in unrealized appreciation on investmen(s
and foreign exchange (503} (121}
Increase i unrealised depreciation on investments
and foreign exchange 3.270.363 3.975.963
Total net Increase in unrealised
appredation{depredation) 3,269 460 3,975,842
Net gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3,011,921 3,370,326

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

MNet gain/(loss) on Mnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD USD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 4,766 2363
Realised (loss) on investments and foreign exchange (3,274,501} {1,348,724)
Total net realised {loss) (3.269,735) (1,346,361)
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
{Continued)

MNet gain/(loss) on Mnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

usn UsSD
{Decreaze) in unrealized appreciation on investments
and foreign exchange (2500 (302)
Increase in unrealised depreciation on investments
and foreign exchange 4,630,903 3,856,308
Total net inerease in unrealised
appredation/{depreciation) 4,630,653 3,856,006
Met gain on finandal assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,360,918 2,509,645

One-Day Premium Fumnd
Net galn/(loss) on Minancial assets at fair valie through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD
Reahsed gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 64,045 103,127
Realized {loe2) on Forward Foreign Curmency Contracts (2.742,077) {2435
Realised gain on Foreign Currency Translations 154 660 197,237
Fealised (loss) on Foreign Currency Translations (174,758) (199917
Realised gain on Total Retum Basket Swaps 1,705,645 33,969
Total net realised (loss)gain {992, 485) 131,981
{Decrease ) Increase in unrealised appreciation on
Forward Foreign Currency Coniracts (8356,509) 943,860
(Decrease) i uniealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts (6B28.987) (1,231}
Increase in unrealised appreciation on Total Retum
Baskel Swaps 1,928,101 71,973
Total net increase in unrealised
appredation/{depredation’} 442,605 1,914,602
Met (loss)ygain on Mnancial assets at Tair value
through profit or loss (549.880) 2,046,583
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Translation

Funciiona! and Presentation Curvency

The functional and presentational currency of each sub-fund is US Dollar (*USD7). This is considened
to be the currency of the primary economic envinonment of each sub-fimd.

Tramsactions and Balances

Assets and lialnlities denominated in currencies other than the functional cumency of the sub-funds are
translated into the functional cwrrency at the exchange rates ruling a8 the financial vear end date.
Transactions in currencies ofher than the functional currency of the sub-finds are translated into the
functional curmency at the exchange rafes mling al the dates of the transactions. Gains and losszes on
foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determuning the result for the fnancial year. Proceeds from issuance and amounts paid on repurchase
of Units are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions,

Transaction cosis

Financial assets and financial liatalities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised o fair value,
Tranzaction costs are expenszed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses ansing
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or logs category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which
they arise.

Recdvable for investments sold/Payvable Tor investments purchased

Recervable for investments sold/Payable for investments purchased represent payables for secunities
purchazed and receivables for securities sold that have been contracted for but not yet delivered on the
Statement of Financial Position date.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accrual basis,

Net Assel Value Per Unit
The Met Asset Value per Unil is calcalated by dividing the Total Net Assets of the sub-funds by the
number of Units in 1ssue, All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the sub-funds at any time for cash equal to a proponional ghare of the
gub-funds” Met Asset Value. The Unit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payvable at the
financial year end date iF the Unitholder exercised the nght 1o put the Unit back in the sub-funds.

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the sub-funds qualify as an investment wndertaking as defined in
Section T39E of the Taxes Consclidation Act. 1997, as amended. The sub-funds are not chargeable 1o
Irigh tax on itg income or capital gains. However, Irigh tax can arize on the happening of a “chargeable
event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Unitholders or any encashment,
repurchase, redemplion, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of Units for Insh
L purpozes ansing as a result of holding Units in the sub-fands for a period of eight years or more.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Mo tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(i} iz an Exempi Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D ofthe Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997,
as amended) who haz provided the sub-funds with the necessary signed stamtory declarations;
or

(i1) is nether Insh resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case. that the necessary signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by the
sub-funds.

Capital gains and interest received by the sub-funds may be subject to non-recoverable withholding
tax in the countries of ongin.
3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shon-term highly liguid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insigrificant risk of changes
in valie, and are held for the purpese of meeting shon-term cash commitments rather than of
investment of other purposes,

DMS Targel Maturily Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
3 December 2024

Held by: UsD
BEH 210
ANZ London 19,707
Sumitome Mitsw Trust Bank, London 32667
1ik2,584

3 December 2023

Held by: UsD
BEH 184
BNP Panbas, Pans 21.537
JPMorgan Chase, New York 54,966
76,691

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024

Held by: UsD
BBEH 412
ANZ, London 8,781
Sumitomo Mitsui Bank Corporation, Tolkyo 94,205
104,398

3l

153/282



Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (Continued )

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

(Continuwed)

Held by:

BEH

ANZ, Hong Kong,

Sumitomo Mitsim Trust Bank, London

One-Day Premium Fund

Held by:
BBH
Sumitomo Mitswi Trust Bank, L ondon

Held by:
BBH
JPMorgan Clase, New York

4. FEES PAYABLE

31 December 2023
UsD

217

9,385

56,107

65,709

3 December 2024
Usn

(223437)

107

(223330)

3 December 2023
Usn

1.515

37.013

JB.528

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Professional fees
Service expenses
Miscellaneons expenses

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

UsD Usp
44,497 35,550
1,206 637
12765 5,134
58,468 41,321

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Fixed operating expenses
Service expenses
Mascellaneois expenses

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

UsD Usn
854,167 845,024
1680 1,124
17.924 4,027
873,771 850,175

a2
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

4. FEES PAY ABLE (Continuwed)
One-Day Premium Fumd

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD L8 )

Legal expenses 42,798 -
Registration expenses 28,431 3,630
Service expenses 07 11
Miscellaneous expenses 7,002 3.012
79,538 9,653

5. FEES

The fees and charges payable to the Manager and the nvestment Manager, which will apply to each
gub-fund or to different Classes of Unit for each sub-fund, are specified in the relevant Supplement,

Management and Investment Management Fees

In respect of its provision of management services to the sub-funds, the Manager receives a
management fee (the “Management Fee™) on a sliding scale af & maximum rate of 0.15% per annmm
of the Met Asszet Value of the sub-fands. The Management Fee is subject to an annmal minimum fee of
USE 125000 per armum for DM S Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 { Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 155000 for One-Day Premium Fund. The Management Fee acorues at
each Valnation Point and 15 paid monthly in armears together with any reasonable and documented ont
of pocket expenses incurred by the Manager in the performance of its duties that are not covered by
the Management Fee.

The Manager is responsible for paving the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager, the
Admimstrator, the Trustee and the Anditor (for the annual andit only), For the financial yvear ended
31 December 2024, the Manager eamed a fee of USD 129,290 (31 December 2023; USD 115,200 of
which USD 30446 (3] December 2023: USD 47, 104) was eutstanding at financial vear end for DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 75,213
(31 December 2023: USD 123,163) of which USD 11,988 (31 December 2023: USD 74,975 was
ol standing at financial year end for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 155,000 (31 December 2023: U7SD 46,713) of which 175D 25,834
(31 December 2023 USD 46,713 ) was ontstanding at financial vear end One-Day Preminom Fund. For
the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, Management Fee of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund
2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie Bonds) was lower than minimum fee of TSI 125,000
due to Mamagement Fee waiver of USD 10,587 and additional reduction of USD 41.666.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

5, FEES (Continued)

Distribution Fees

The Manager has appointed SMBC Tmst Bank Lid (the “Distnbutor™) as the distributor in Japan,
respongible for purchasing the Unite from the Manager and completing subscription orders placed by
investors in Japan {only ) in accordance with Japanese law. Distribution fees of 0.53%% per annum of
Met Assel Valwe for DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and 0,.80% per annum for One-Day Premium Fund are payable to the Distributors
on a per Unit bazis. For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Distnbution fee incurred was
USD 381,147 (31 December 2023: USD 407,182) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of which USD 63,925 was payable at financial
year end (31 December 2023: USD 33.755), USD 415,968 (31 December 2023: USD 435.175) for
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of
which USD 63,681 was payable at financial vear end (31 December 2023: USD 34,196) and
USD 442,584 (3] December 2023: USD 120.239) for One-Day Premium Fund, oot of which
USD 62,813 (31 December 2023; UISD 32,178) was pavable @ financial year end.

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Administrator and Trustee is entitled 1o receive fees calculated as a percemtage of the Net Asset
Walue of each sub-fand for the provision of administration and trustee services respectively. The fees
of the Administrator and the Trostee are charged out of the Management Fee received by the Manager
or out of the assets of the relevant sub-fund as may be specified in the relevant Supplement. The fees
and the expenses of the Administrator and Trustee are pavable monthly in grrears. and are calculated
at arate of 0.04% for the first USD 1 billion of the aggregate Nel Asset Value of the sub-funds of the
Trust, 0.035%% on the next USD 1.5 billion and 0.03%; above 175D 2.5 billion. The Administrator and
Trustee are alzo entitled to receive additional fees from the sub-funds to cover any reasonable and
documented out-of-pocketl expenses.

Agenl Securities Company lees

The Agent Securities Company in Japan is entitled to an annual fee rate of 0.01% of the Met Assets of
the sub-fumds. This fee is payable monthly in arrears and is accrued on a daily basis. Any reasonable
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incured by the Agent Secunties Compamy for client
services carried out on behalf of the sub-funds are borme by the sub-funds. For the financial year ended
31 December 2024, the Agent Secunties Company fee incwrred was USDr 7,380 (31 December 2023:
USD 7.685) for DM S Target Matunity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), out of which U'SD 1,206 was payable ai financial year end (31 December 2023: USD 637),
USD 7849 (31 December 2023: USD 8,211) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing,
in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of which USD 1,680 was payable at financial year end
(31 December 2023; USD 1,124) and USD 5,532 (3] December 2023; USD 1,503) for Ome-Day
Premium Fund, out of which USD 307 (31 December 2023 USD 11} was payable at financial vear
end.

Aunditor’s Remuneration

The stantory audit fee (excluding value-added ax and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the anditor
i connection with ther andit work), whach is paid by the Manager on belmlf of the sub-fund, for the
finamcial year amounted to USDr 36,524 (31 December 2023; UUSD 36,943), There were no other
assurance services, tax advisory services or other non-mudit services paid to the Statutory Auditors
during the fimancial yvear ended 31 December 2024 or during the financial vear emded
31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

5, FEES (Continued)

Establishment and Organlsational Expenses

The establishment and organisational expenses (including expenses relating o the drafling of the
Prospectus, the negotiation and preparation of the material contracts, the printing of the Prospectus and
the related marketing matenal, and the fees and expenses of its professional advisers) imcurred
comnected with the initial offering of Units in respect of the sub-finds are not expected to exceed
EUR 25,000 for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bondz) USD 125000 for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 165,000 for Cne-Day Premium Fund.

The financial statement MNet Asset Valoe per Unit is calculated with organisational expenses being
expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which tofaled USD 16,287 (31 December 2023;
USE 145.000) for One-Day Premium Fund. For the purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value per
Unit for Unithholder dealing, organisational expenses are being amortised over the first three financial
years of the lifetime of the Funds, USD 98413 (31 December 2023; USD 130.447) for One-Day
Preminm Fund was amortised in the Unitholders calculation for the financial year ended 31 December
2024, Organizational expenses for DM S Target Matunty Setting Fund 202007 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) (31 December 2023; USD 57,23 1) were fully amortised for the financial year ended
31 December 2024,

Fixed Operating Expenses

The 2103 Fund incurs cerain minimum operating expenses (being the minimum Management Fees)
during the life of the Fund to the Fund Matuniy Daie (the “Fixed Operating Expenses”). In order to
ensure that Unitholders are treated as fairly as pessible with respect to such Fixed Operating Expenses
{and to ensure that in the event of redemptions by Unitholders prior to the Fund Matunty Date,
remaiming Unitholders do nat bear a higher proportion of the Fixed Operating Expenses), the Fund has
calculated the Fixed Operating Expenses and such Fixed Operating Expenses shall be amortized over
the first 3 vears of the Fund.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Fixed Operating Expenses incurred was
UsD 29,976 (31 December 2023; USD 163,519) for DMS Target Matrnty Seting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), omt of which USD 854,167 was payable at financial
year end (31 December 2023 USD 845,024).
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

FROFIT OR LOSS

The following tables detail the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
sub-funds a5 at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,

Financial assets at fair value throwgh
profit or Joss
Total Retum Basket Swaps
Performance-linked Noles
Unrealised apprecmtion on Foarward
Foreign Currency Contracts
Total Finaneial assets at Cair valie
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair valoe through
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Forewn Currency Contracts
Total Financial liabilithes at Cair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at Tair valoe through
profit or loss
Total Retum Basket Swaps
Performance-l inked MNotes
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumrency Contracts
Todal Financial assets at Fair valwe
through proflt or loss

Financial liabilities at Fair value throongh
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foregn Cumrency Contracts
Total Financial liabilitkes al Fair value
through profit or loss

DS Targed Maturfty  DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fand 02007 Setting Fand 2103
(Investing im Goldnsan  (Investing in Goldman e Dy
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Prembam Fund
As ol As ol As ol
31 Dewember 2024 A1 December 2024 31 Drecember 2024
TS Ush U5
- ~ 46,259 082
73,313,987 4537110 -
- - 37351
73,313,957 74,537,110 46,381 433
- - 630,218
63218
DMS Targed Maturity  DMS Target Maturity
Settig Fand H20-07 Setting Fand 2103
{Investing im Goldman  (Investing in Goldman O Dy
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premiam Fund
As ab As i As ai
A1 Decamlyer 013 31 Decembier TOTI Al December 2023
TS Ush USD
p . 59,636,333
T5.487.222 83 800,833 =
= = 943 860
75,487.222 $3.860,833 60,550,193
- 1,231
1231
36
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7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sub-funds are required to discloze the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
Starement of Financial Position to enable users of the financial statements 1o evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recogmsed assets and liabilivies.
These recognised assets and liabilities are derivative instroments that are either sulject to an
enforceable master netting amrangement or similar agreement or meet set-off critenia,

For financial reporting purpose. the sub-funds do not offzet derivative assets and denvative liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position. Amounts which cannot be offset, but which could be settled net
under the terms of master netting agreements if centain conditions arise, and collateral received or
pledzed, are presented in the tables below:

One-Day Premium Fund

31 December 2024

Assels subject (o Amounts Cash  Securily Nel
master netting avallable  collateral collateral  Amount of
Agreement for offset pledged  pledged Asaels
Derivative Assels UsD LS LsD UsD LIS

Forward Foreign Curmency
Contrads 87,331 (87351} -
Total Return Basket Swaps 46,294,082 - A6, 24,087
46,381,433 (87.351) 46,204,082

Liabilities

subject to master  Amounts Cash  Securily Net
nitting available  collatersl  collateral  Amount of
agreement Tor oflset recelved recelved liakdlities
Derivative Liabilities UsD LIS LIS LS LSI»

Forward Foreign Cumency
Contrads 630,218 (87.351) 542,867
430,218 {87,351} 242867

31 December 2023

Assets subject to Amounts Cash  Securiiy Net
master netling available  collateral  collateral  Amount of
agreement for offset pledged  pledzed assefs
Derivative Assets LISD LISDy LIS LISDy LISy

Forward Foreign Currency
Contrads 943,860 {1,231} 942,629
Total Return Basket Swaps 59.636,333 - 59,036,333
0,580,193 (1.231) = 6, 5TH. 962
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

One-Day Premlum Fond (Continued)
31 December 2023 (Continued)

Linbilities
subject to master  Amounis Cash  Security Net
netting available  collateral colluteral  Amount of
agreemenl Tor oflsel riceived  received linbdlities
Derivative Liabilities USD LSD LS UsD USIy
Forward Foreign Cumency
Contracs 1,231 {1,231}
1,231 (1.231)

8. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANCEMENTS

There were no sofl commission amangements endered into dunng the financial vear ended 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023 nil},

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription during the Imitial Offer Period for DMS
Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds):

Class Currency Initial Minimum Minimum M o im
Denomination | OfTer Initial Subsequent Redemption
Price Subscription | Subscription Amouni
per Unit Minimum Holding
USD Unit o5, USD 10 | USD 150,000 NIA | Unit
Class
gf;:; Unit | aup AUD 10 | AUD 200,000 M/A I Unit

Investors must subseribe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated, Repurchase
pavments are also made in the cumency in which the relevant Class i3 denominated.

Following the end of the Initial Offer Perod, it 15 not anticipated that further subscriptions into the sub-
funds will be accepted, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscrption Day on any Business Day. In such circomstances, Units in the sub-funds will be available
for subscription at the Net Asset Valoe per Unit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscrption Day and the Directors will confirm details of the relevant Subscription Cut-OFF Time and
date by which settlement should be made in respect of any such subscription

A Unithelder may submit a redemption request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submuitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-Off
Time. Units will be redeemed at the Met Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Redemption Dray. The aggregate redemption proceeds pavable (o a Unitholder will be rounded down
to the nearea whole USD 001, in the case of the USD Unit Class and AUD 0.01, in the caze of the
AUD Unit Class. The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the accoum of the sub-finds.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

For the purposes of calcnlating the redemption price of a Unit, the Trustee and/or the Manager may
deduct from the Net Asset Value per Unit an amount which itthey consider(s) to be an appropriate
allowance to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the sub-funds
in realising mssets or closing oul positions to provide sub-funds to meet redemption requests on a
particular Redemption Day.

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remznning Units in the sub-fands will be compulsonly repurchased on the Funds Matorty Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Unitholders within 5 Business Days of redemption.

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription during the Intial Offer Period for Ome-Day

Premium Fund:
Class Currency Imitial Oifer Minimum Initial | Minimuom Minlmum
Denomination | Price Subscription Subsequent Redemption
per Unit Subscription Amount
/Wi nlmum
Holding
UsD
Accumulating | USD USD 10 L&D 150,000 N/A i Lt
Unit Class
USD Monthly
Distribution UushD Ush 10 USD 150,000 MN/A I Lt
Unit Classy
JPY
Accumulating | JPY JPY 1,00 JPY 150,000,000 NiA I Uit
Unit Class
JPY Monthly
DHstribution IPY JPY 1,000 JPY 150,000,000 NiA I Uit
Umit Class

Investors must subscribe into 2 Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
payments ang also made in the cumency in which the relevant Class 18 denomanated.

Following the end of the Initial Cffer Period, Units in the sub-fiund will be available for subscription
at the Net Asset Value per Unit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant Subscription Day.
Completed subscnption applications should be submitted by the Sebscription Cut-O0T Time in
accordance with the requirements of the Prospectus. Cleared semtlement momes are required (o be
forwarded on the third Business Day falling after the relevant Subscription Day,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

A Unitholder may submit a redemption request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-Off
Time, Units will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Redemption Day. The aggregate redemption proceeds payable to a Unitholder will be rounded down
to the nearest whole L'SD 0.01, in the case of the USD Unit Classes and JPY 1, in the case of the JPY
Unit Classes. The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of the Fund. For the
purpozes of calenlating the redemption price of 2 Umit. the Trustee and'or the Manager may deduct
from the Met Asset Value per Unit an amount which itthey consider(s) to be an approprste allowance
to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the Fund in realising asseis
or closing out positions to provide funds to meet redemption requests on a particular Redemption Day.

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the sub-fiunds will be compulsonly repurchased on the Funds Maturity Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be gent to Unitholders within 5 Business Daye of redemption.

DMS Target Maturily Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
USD Unii AUD Unit USD Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Mumbers of Units outstanding at
the beginning of financial year 7.327416 1,334,915 7935866 1,395,373
MNumber of Units izsued - - - -
Mumber of Units redeemed (453,615) (71.434) {608.450) (60455)
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of finandal year 6,873,801 1,263,481 T.327.416 1.334.915

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
USD Unii AUD Unit USD Unii AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Mumbers of Unite outstanding at
the beginning of financial year 10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1,238,393
Number of Units issued - - - -
Wumber of Units redeemed (1,282,715} (106473) {432,208) (#4957
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of inandal year 9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1.22%.436
4
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Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued})

One-Day Premium Fund

31 Drecember 2024

UsD USD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class  Distributlon Unit Class  Distribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Mumbers of Units outstanding at
the beginming of financial year 2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1135470
Mumber of Units issued 1,052,879 215,090 212,751 2,571
Number of Units redeemed (649,136) (91,377) (2.176476) (904, 288
Numbers of Uniis outstanding
al the end of finandal year 2,732,910 IE5, 005 1,827,702 133,783
3 December 2023
UsD UsD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly  Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class Distribution Unit Class  Distribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Wumbers of Unils outstanding at
the beginning of financial
period - - - -
Number of Units issued 2,359,703 227,292 4,214,764 1135470
Number of Units redeemed (30,536} (423,334) -
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of finandal period 2329167 227,292 3,791,430 1135470

Pavable for sub-fund Units repurchased as at 31 December 2024 iz presented in the Statement of
Financial Position and amounts to USD 28,710 (31 December 2023; USD nilj for DM S Target Matuny
Sening Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 7,520 (31 December 2023:
USD 7.430) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Comporate
Bonds) and USD 66,846 (31 December 2023 USD ml) for One-Day Premium Fund.

10 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The distribation palicy for the sub-funds will be determined by the Manager from time to time and set
ot im the relevant Supplement,

The distrbution policy of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) is not to make distributions to Unitholders bt instead to reinvest all the sub-fund's
net ingome and realised capital gans. Accordingly, an investment in the sub-fund may not be suitable
for investors seeking current retums.

Any dividend pad on a Ut of the sub-funds that las not been clamed within six years of its
declaration will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the sub-fimds, WNo interest will be paid
on any dividend,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

10, DISTRIBUTION POLICY (Continued)

Omne-Day Premiom Fund do not intend to declare dividends in respect of the USD Accumulating Uit
Clazs or the JPY Accumulating Unit Clazs. Any distnnbutable profits relating to such Undt Classes will
remain in the sub-fund's assets and be reflected inthe Net Asset Value of such Unit Classes.

The sub-fund intends to declare dividends, in an amount to be determined by the Directors, in respect
of the USD Monthly Distribution Unit Class and the JPY Monthly Distribution Unit Class on a monthly
basis. The dividends in respect of such Unit Classes will be declared and paid on the fifth calendar day
of each month, provided that if the fifth calendar day of a relevant month is nod a Business Day, the
dividends shall be declared and paid on the next Busimess Day following the fifth calendar day of the
month (the "Dividend Declamtion Date™).

Dunng the financial year ended 31 December 2024 there were no distributions declared for DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Matumity Setting Fund 2103 (Invedting in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and for the Cne-
Day Premium Fund amounted to USD 345,338 (31 December 2023; USD 81,820).

11, OTHER EXPENSES
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fond 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 3 December 2023

UsD Ushx

Professional fees 12,238 26,001
Service expenses 7380 T.685
Miscellaneous expenses 16,630 -
36,248 33,686

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 3 December 2023

UsD UsD

Fixed operating expenses 29,976 163,519
Serice expenses 7.849 8.211
Miscellaneous expensas 25,256 10,841
63,081 182,571

One-Day Premivm Fund

31 December 2024 M December 2023

UsD UsD

Legal expenses 122,340 f.041
Registration expenses 22,801 6,630
Ovwerndrafl expenses 5485 -
Service expenses 5,532 1.503
Mizcellaneous expenses 10.474 1631
166,632 20,805
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS

The sub-funds’ investment activities expose them (o the vanous types of risks which are associated
with the financial instriments and markets in which they imvest. The Trust's sk management policies
seck to minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on each sub-fund financial performance in
order to satisly the mvestment objectives of the sub-funds,

There is no guarantee that in any time period the sub-finds investment objective will be successful,
Investors should be aware that the valee of Units may fall as well a5 nse. In particular, an investment
in the sub-funds is subject to investment risk, including the possible lozs of the entire principal amount
that an investor may invest. The value of Units may rise or fall, as the capital value of the securities in
which the sub-funds mvests may fluctuate. The mvestment income of the sub-funds is based on the
income earned on the secunties it holds, less expenses inowmed. Therefore, the sub-funds” imvestment
income may be expecied to flnctuate in response to changes in such expenses of iNcome,

The main nzks anzing from the sub-funds® fAnancial instruments are market risk (including price nsk.
foreign currency nsk and interest rate risk), lguidity risk and credit risk

(a) Market Risk

Marke! risk anses mainly from unceraimty about future prices of financial instruments held,
gpecifically from other price movements. It represends the polential loss the sub-funds may suffer
through holding market positions in the face of adverse price movements.

The sub-funds are subjects to market price nisk, The value of the sub-finds' investments will o up and
down as prices of the financial instruments fluctuate.

The sub-funds' financial instriments are susceptible to market price risk from uncerainy about fitire
prices of financial instruments. All securities in which the sub-funds invest present a sk of loss of
capital. See Statement of Investments on pages 10 -12 for details of the sub-funds exposure to market
price risk. The sub-finds manage price risk by nsing various investment strategies.

An increase of 10% in fair value due to changes in valuation assnmptions of financial assets as a the
reporting date would have increased the net assets atributable to the sub-fund and profit for the
financial year by USD 7,331,399 (3] December 2023 USD 7,548.722) for DM S Target Matunty
Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds ) USD 7,453,711 (31 December
2023 USD £.386,083) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 4,632,555 (31 December 2023: USD 5.963,633) for Cne-Day Premium
Fund. A decrease of 106 would have had an equal and opposite impact.

(b) Imterest Rate Risk

Interest rabe risk anses from the posaibility of changes ininterest rales. I will affect future cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments, At the 31 December 2024 and at 31 December 2023, the
sib-funds do not have a matenal exposure 1o inferest rate nsk.

() Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the sub-fiunds may not be able to settle or meet its obligations
on fime or 3t a reasonable price,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

() Liquidity Risk (Comtinued)

The ATFM maintaing an adequate and docwmented liquidity management policy in accordance with
the requirements of Alternative Investment Fund Managers Divective (the “ AIFMD™). The AIFM's
liquidity management policy includes such procedures as are neces=ary (o enable the AIFM to assess
and monitor the Liquidity risk to which the sub-funds and Trst are or may be exposed (including
conducting, regular stress tests under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions) and o ensure that
the liquidity profile of the investments of the sub-funds comply with the Trst"s underlying obligations,

The Trust's policy to manege liquidity 15 to bave sufficient liqudity in the sub-funds to meet is
ligbilities a= and when they fall due, under both normal and strezsed conditions without incurming undue
losses or nisking damage.

The Tmst assesses the liquidity profile of each sub-fund consistent with its underlying obligations and
redemption policy dunng the lifecycle of the sub-fund including at their launch. The Trust ensures that
ligquidity thresholds which are proportionate to the redemption obligstions and liabilities of the sub-
fund are sei.

A liquidity measuremend methodology i in place 1o assess both the asset side and the liability side. Cn
the asset side, the methodology iz based on a time-to-liquidate measure and a modelled market value
adjusztment, based on a seres of guantitative varables for different asset classes. The model takes imo
account the expected redemption profile of the sub-fund and provides relevant estimates. Thus, the
methodology provides a clear route to portfolic managzers on projected cash flows in the event of
portfolio (full or partial ) liquidation.

The credit terms for settlement of the liabilities of the sub-funds are generally within three months or
less.

(d) Credit Risk
Credit nsk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial mstrument will fal to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The Investment Manager assesses and measures
the risk of each investment on its merits and tailors its credit policy and monitoring accordingly on a
regular basis.

The masimum exposure Lo credit sk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset at
the reporting date.

Brown Brothers Harmiman Trustee Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Trustee and Depositary to the
Trust, Cash held via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brothers Hamman & Co. ("BBH") are
obligations of BRH. Accordingly, while BBH is responsible for exercizsing reasonahle care in the
administration of such agency cash accounts where it has appointed the agent (e, in the case of cash
correspondent banks and sub—custodians), it s not Lable for their repayment in the event that the agent,
by reasom of its bankruptey, insolvency or otherwise, fails to make repayment. Brown Brothers
Hamman & Co, has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2023; A+} as issued by Fitch,

The inability (or perceived mability ) of 1ssners to make nmely payments of interest and principal may
make the values of securities approximate only to the values placed on such securities, In the alsence
of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish the fair value of such
securities.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{d) Credit Rizsk (Continued)

The MNotes Issuer 15 a special purpose company which does not have substantial assets of its oW Lo
suppont its obligations under the Notes. Amounts due 1o the sub-funds will only be pad with funds
paid to the Motes Issuer under any charged agreement(s) and any charged assets, Therefore, the sub-
firnds assume full credit nisk of the Motes [ssuer, any comnterparty and the obligon =) of any charged
assels.

The Notes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the exposure to a portfolio of fixed
income instruments (the * G5 Bonds") issned by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (the “G5 Bonds
Izsner”) with a long term credit rating of A (31 December 2023: A) ag izsued by Fitch.

As al 31 December 2024, the issuer and counterparty for performanc e-linked notes held by the sub-
funds are Luminis 11 Limited (“the Notes Issuer” ),

While MaplesFS Limited (“MFS®) is the registered owner of the Notes Issuer's ordinary shares, these
are held subject to a Declaration of Trust ("DOT"). Under the DOT, MFS holds the Notes Issuer's
shares on trust for the benefit of a "Cualified Chanty” {as defined in the DOT) which is legally the
ultimate beneficial owner ("UBO") of the imsi assets which comprises solely the shares or the
economic value of the shares once the Notes Isseer is formally lguidated. Typically, the nominal value
of these trust assets would be less than 551,000, There are no bearer shares in the legal structure.,

The sub-funds' cash is swept on a mghtly basis to pre-approved financial institutions. As at 31
December 2024, the institutions where the sub-funds® cash was held and their respective credit ratings.
at that date, are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
ANZ, London High Grade
Sumitomo Mitsui Bank Corporation, Tokyo Upper Medium Grade
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Londen Upper Medinom Grade

(e} Counterparty Risk

Similar to credit risk, the sub-funds may be exposed to counterparty risk, or the risk that an institution
or other entity with which the sub-finds has unsettled or open transactions will default.

As the One-Day Premium Fund is materially exposed to the Swap Counterparty, the sub-fund may
suffer sigmficant losses in the event such as defaull or decling of management or Anancal situation of
the Swap Counterparty.

The Manager may fromn time totime, inits sole discretion, approve additional swap counterpanies with
which the sub=fiund may transact. Any such additional counterparties will be disclosed in the financial
statement of the sub-fund.

Groldman Sachs Intemational Bank acts as the Swap Comnterparty to the One-Day Premium Fund. The
Swap Counterparty acts as a primary dealer for Enropean government bonds and 15 mvolved in market
making in European government bonds, lending and deposit taking activities, and securities lending.
In exceptional circumstances, the Swap Counterparty may be unable to fitlfil its oblig ations under the
Swap Agreement due to regulatory reasons, change in the tax or accounting laws relevant to the Swap
Counterparty, or otherwise. In such circumstances, there is a risk that the sub-fund’s investment
strategy conld be interrupted or terminated, In such circumstances, the investment objective and policy
of the sub-Fund may not be achieved and the sub-fund may be unable to recover amy losses incurmed.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Aundited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(e} Counterpanty Risk {Continued)

The ability of the sub-fund to meet its obligations o Unitholders will depend on the receipt by it of
payments owed to the sub-fund by the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement. As a resull, the
sub-fund will be exposed to the creditwornthingss of the Swap Counterparty,

Gioldman Sachs Imemational Bank may act as the Strategy Calculation Agent. The Total Retum Basket
Swap to be entered imto by the sub-fund may be lighly specialised and there may be no counterparny
other than Goldman Sachs which provides such an OTC denivative instroment.

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank has a long term credit mating of A+ (31 December 2023: A+)
as issued by Fitch.

{11 Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign corrency tisk is the nsk that the fair value of future cazh fows of the sub-funds’ investments
will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Cenain of the sub-funds' assets,
linbilities, income and expenses are denominated in cwrencies other than its functional cuwrrency. As a
result, movement in exchange rates may affect the value of those items, The Investment Manager
monitors this risk on an ongoing basis.

The tables below set out the carrying amount of financial instruments in each curmency:

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
As at 31 December 2024

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(IS (USDy {USIx)
Finandal Asseis T.657.0T2 65,759 499 T3416,571
Finandal Liabillties = {231,549} {231,549)
7,657,072 65,527,950 TA 185022

As al 31 December 2023
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(UsSIn (USIH {USD¥)
Finandal Assels 8485702 67,078,211 75,563,913
Finandial Liabilities - {123,180} {122,180
B.485.702 66,956,031 75,441,733

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing ln Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Asg al 31 December 2024

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USIn (LS (USIN
Finandal Assets 5,375,535 69,276,560 7464 1,508
Finandal Liabilities - (H67,547) {956,960
5375538 68,309,013 73,684,548
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11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{fi Foreign Currency Risk {Contineed)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

{Continwed)

As al 31 December 2023

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(LS (USD) {USD)
Finandal Assets 6, 102801 77,823,741 33926542
Finandal Liabilities - (966,776} {66, TTH)
6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959, Tah
One-Day Premium Fund
Asal 31 December 2024
JPY Balances USD Balances Tolal Balances
(USD) (USIY) {USI)
Finandal Assets 37458 46,686,025 46,773,483
Financial Liabilitles {630,218} {455.468) (1083 686)
(542,760} 46,117,587 45,684,797
As al 31 December 2023
JPY Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) (UsD) {USDY
Finandal Assets 1,298 734 60,131,960 61430, 703
Finandal Liabilities (1,231} {725,797} (727028}
1.297.502 549,406,172 60, TO3,6TS

Ag at 31 December 2024, had the AUD strengthened or weakened by 5% against U'SD, with all other
variables held constant. this would have an approximate effect of USD 382,854 (31 December 2023:
LI S0 424,285) for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 268,777 (31 December 2023: USD 305,140) for DMS Target Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-
fund,

As at 31 December 2024, had the JPY strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
variables held constant, thiz would have an approximate effect of USD 27,138 (31 December 2023:
LS 64,875) for One-Day Preminm Fund onthe Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-fumnd.

(g) Fair Value Estimation
The sub-fiund has classified fair value measurements nsing a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
gignificance of the impus nsed in making the measurements,

FRS 102 Section 2A.1 on “Fair Value Disclosure” requires disclosure relating (o the fair value
herarchy i which fair value measuremenis are categorised for assels and liabilities. The disclosures
are bazed on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure
fair value. In March 2016 amendments were made (o paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosire requirements for financial mstitutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements with
those in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and historical practice with those in Insh GAAP,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Aundited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{2} Fair Value Estimation (Contimeed)

Financial assets and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The
fair value measurements are categorised within a three-level hierarchy. The valuation erarchy is
based upon the relative observatality and rebiability of inputs to the valnation of each of the sub-funds’
investments, The inputs or methodology nsed for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication
of the risk associated with investing in those securities, The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the sub-
fund can access af the measwrement date,

The tvpes of assets and lighilities categorized in Level 1 generally include actively traded domestic and
certain foreign equity securities, cenain U5, government obligations, denvatives actively traded ona
national securities exchange (such as some futures and options), shares of exchange traded funds (even
if their investments are valued using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs).

Lewvel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (ie. developed
using market data) for the asset or hability, either directly or indirectly,

These include investment-grade corporate bonds and cenain non-U 5. sovereign obligations, listed
equities, mutual funds, equity-linked notes and over the counter denvatives, As level 2 investments
include positions that are mot traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and'or non<ransferability. which are generally bazed
on available market information.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable ) for the asset or liability,

The tvpes of assets and liabilities categonised in Level 3 generally include, big are not limited to, certain
debi securities (such as assei-backed. morigage-backed, loans and soversign debi) and derivatives even
though they are valued using broker quotes: certain debt securities and denvatives adjusted by a
specified disconnt for liguidity or other considerations; certain sovereign debt securities valued nsing
comparable securities izsued by the sovereign adjusted by a specified spread; securities whose irading,
has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading exchange valued at
the most recent available marked or quoted price; secunties in defanlt or bankmptcy proceedings for
which there 15 no current market quotsiion valued at the most recent avalable market or guoted price;
potential litigation recoveries and interests related to bankmpicy proceedings; third-pany imvestment
funds where valustions are provided by fund sponsors and which are adjusted for lguidity
cotsderations as well as the ming of the receipl of information and cemain securities (hat are valued
using a price from a comparable security related to the same issuer.

The level in the fair valoe hierarchy within which the fair value measurement 15 categonised is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement inils
entirety. The significance of an inpt 15 aszessed againg the fair value measurement in ils entirety.

If a fair value measurement uses observable mputs that require significant adjustment based on
uncbservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hiemrchy. Assessing
the sigmificance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its enfirety requires judgement,
considening factors specific to the asset or liability,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g} Fair Value Estimation (Continmeed)

The detemuination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant jindgement by the Investment
Manager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distribnted or updated, reliable and venfiable, not propnetary, and provided by
independent sources that are gctively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables provide an analysiz of the fair value hierarchy of the sub-funds’ financial assets,
measured at fair value at 31 December 2024 and 2023,

DMS Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 Level 1 Lasvel 2 Level 3 Taotal
Assels UKDy USD USD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 73,313,987 73,313,087
Toial . - 73,313,987 73,313,987
3 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD UsSD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 75487222 75487.222
Total - = 78,487,222 TE. 487,222

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Invesfing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels Usp LSy UsSD s
Performance-linked noles - - 74,537,110 74,537,110
Toial - - 74,537,110 74,537,110
31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Leve 3 Tutal
Assels USD USD USD LSy
Performance-linked notes - - 83,860,833 83,860,833
Tolal - = 3,860,833 83,860,833
49
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Aundited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{2} Fair Value Estimation (Contimeed)

One-Day Preminom Fund

3 December 2024 Leved 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD LSD UsD LS
Total Retum Basket Swaps - 46,204 082 - 46,294,082
Forward Foreign Currency Conlracls - 87.351 - 37,351
Total - 46,381,433 - 46,381,433
Liabllities

Forward Foreign Currency Conlracts - 630218 - 630,218
Total - 630,218 - 630,218
31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD LUsSD UsD UsD
Total Retum Basket Swaps - 50,636,333 - 59,636,333
Forward Foreign Currency Coniracls = 943360 - 943,860
Tolal - 60,580,193 - &0, 550,193
Liabilities

Forward Foreign Currency Coniracis - 1,231 - 1,231
Total - 1.231 - 1,231

The sub-fund’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair value include cash, short-term receivables and
payables. The respective balances are carmed at values that reflect a reasonable approximation of their
fair value. In accordance with the requirements of FRS 102, cash balances are classified as Level 1 and
all other assets and liabilities are classified as Level 2.

Transfers into and ol of levels are recognised at the end of the reporting vear. There were no transfers
wnto or oul of Level 3 during the financial year ended 31 December 2024 or 31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g} Fair Value Estimation (Continmeed)

The tables below show a reconclistion from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair
value measurements of level 3 financial assets of the fair value hnerarchy,

DNS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Level 3 Level 3

3 December 2024 3 December 2023

UsD UsD

Crpening balance 75487222 78,322,261

Sales during the financial year {5,185719) {6,204, 565

Realised (losses) on investments (258.338) (606,433)
Met change in unrealised appreciation on

investmenis at fair value through profit or loss 3,270,822 3975063

Closing balance 73,313,987 TEART, 222

As at 31 December 2024, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3.665.699 (31 December 2023; 3,774,361 ) on
the net assets attributable to the sub-fund.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD

Opening balance 83,860,833 84,842,688

Sales during the financial year (10,684, 130) (3.490,121)

Realised (losses) oninvestments (3,270,710) (1,348,042)
Met changé i unrealised appreciation on

investments at fair value through profit or loss 4,631,117 3,856,308

Cl osing balance 74,537,110 3,860,833

As at 31 December 2024, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,726,856 (31 December 2023: 4,193,042) on
the net assets attributable to the sub-fund,

Valuation methodology

Two of the sub-funds invest into performance-linked Notes, the fair value of which is determined by
Goldman Sachs, uzing a valuation madel. The key ob=ervable inputz and unobgervable inputs to this
valuation model are as follows:
*  key observable inpuls
o Imterest rales
oGS credit spread
Level of the sirategy as well a= its components
#  Key unobservable input
o Implied volatility
o Discount rates and yields
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

11. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(2) Fair Value Estimation (Contimeed)
Valuation methodology (Continwed)

Unobservable inpits are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, The
valuation method being nsed For financial assets held by the sub-funds that are classified as Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy is the use of proscy pricing techniques by Goldman Sachs. The yield being nsed
in the proxy pricing is considered the most significant unobservable input used which impacts the price
and related fair value of the performance linked notes,

13, EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been used (o translate assets and liabilities in cumencies other than
USD at financial year end:

As at As at

M December 2024 M December 2023
AUD 1.6086 14655
EUR 103594 1.1039
JPY 1572000 140 9300

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Managzer are nod aware of any transactions with related persons dunng the financial
vear ended 31 December 2024 and for the financial year ended 31 December 2023, other than those
dizclosed in these financial statements. The AIFM. Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited, the
[nvestment Manager, Waystone Investment Management {[E) Limited, the Agent Secunities Company
in Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd are regarded as related paries of the sub-funds under FRS 102
“Related Party Disclosunes™.

Mr. Keith Hazley, Mr. James Allis and Mr. Andrew Kehoe are Directors of the Manager and also
employees of Waystone Mamagement Company (IE) Limited.

Ms. Sarah Wallace and Ms. Andrea Oman are Directors of the Manager and also employees of
Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited. Mz, Sarah Wallace was appointed to the Board of
Directorz of the Manager on 11 July 2024 and M2, Andrea Oman was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Manager on 31 March 20325,

Ms. Samantha Mevlit and Me. Rachel Wheeler were Directors of the Manager and also employees of
Waystong Management Company (IE) Limited and Waystone Governance (UK ) Limited, respectively.
M=, Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 February 2024 and
Mg, Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025,

All related parties are transacted at arm's lengih.
Fees incumred with related parties dunng the financal year are disclosed in the Statement of

Compreliensive Income, Amomnts pavable to related paries a the financial year are disclosed in
Mote 5,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

15, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the financial year has not been presented though
the detmls may be obtamned free of charge from Wavstone Management Company (1E) Limited.

16. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE FER UNIT

The Met Assel Value per redeemable participating unit is calculated by dividing the total net assets (as
calculated for pricing purposes) of the sub-funds by the number of redeemable participating Unifs in
izgue. The MNet Asset Value per redeemable participating unit reported in the Statement of Financial
Position 12 that used For financial statement purposes,

For the purpozes of the financial statements, all orgamsational expenses, including fees paid to the
professional advisors of the sub-funds, are expensed m the financial year they are incurred in
accordance with FRS 102, Organisational expenses were charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

DM S Target Matunty Setting Fund 202007 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) will be
put into liguidation after the 25 July 2025, Liquidation cost expenses expected to be incurred upon
¢losure of the sub-fund are expected to amount 1o USD 50,000 and have been accrued for in these
financial statements,

The tables below illustrate the reconciliation between the Net Asset Value for financial statement
purposes and the MNet Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value for financial
statement PUrposes 73.185.022 T5441,733
Add: Cumulative additional
organisational expenses wrntlen off - -
Add: Acemed liguidation costs 50,000 -
Met Asset Valee for Unitholder
dealing purposes 73,235,022 75441733

33
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Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

16. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Invesfing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As alt As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
MWet Asset Value for financial
statement pUrposes 73,684,548 §2.959.766
Add: Cumudative additional
organisational expenses wnitten off - 57,231
Met Asset Valee for Unithalder
dealing purposes T3.684 548 83,016,997
One-Day Premium Fund
As at Az al
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsSD
MWet Aszset Value for financial
SLAlEMent PUrposes 45,684,797 60,703,675
Add: Cumudative additional
organisational expenses wrtten off G8413 130,447
Met Asset Valoe for Unitholder
dealing purposes 45783210 60 834,122

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
M=, Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 Febmary 2024,

Ms. Sarah Wallace was appointed as Non-Executive Director to the Board of Directors of the Manager
o 11 July 2024,

There were no other significant events oceurring during the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END
Ms. Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025

Mz, Andrea Oman was appointed as Non-Executive Director to the Board of Directors of the Manager
on 31 March 2025,

54
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Financial Statements (Continued}
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

18 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (Continued)
DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)p will be
put into Bguidation afler the 25 July 2025, Liquidation cos expenses expectéd to be mcurred upon

closure of the sub-fund are expected to amount 1o USD 50,000 and have been accred for in these
financial statements,

There were no other significant events occurring after 31 December 2024 requinng financial statement
disclosure.

19, APPROVAL OF FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the Manager on 11 June 2025,

33
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Number of Falr Value %o of Net
Shares Securily Description UsDH Assels

Performance-linked notes (31 December 202.3: 101.09%3)
Cayman Islands

93437040 Luminiz I1 Limited, USD Class 659,171,441 93.8%
11,662,390 Luminis [T Limited, AUD Class 5,365,669 7.28
Total Investments 74,537.110 10116
Other as=ets and labilities (852.562) (1.16)
et Assels attribot able to Unitholders 73,684,548 100,00
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2025
74,750,019 11,176,623
139,755 20,896
74,610,264 11,155,727
9,016,358.740
1,118,563.100
7.70 1,151
7.50 705
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2025
4,490,006 2,774
4,490,006

2020 31 2025 31

2022 10 22 2

2023 12 31 4
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- AIFM UcITS
ACD
AEQI ANL
SPV
- 100
ETF - ETF
2025
EU 190,082,162,506
EU 7,028,783,687
AIF 503
ucITS 326
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328

2025 31
162.08

2024 12 31
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
29,729,991 4,818,637 22,026,305 3,570,024
10 9,000,000 1,458,720 - -
72,013,572 11,671,960 66,112,491 10,715,513
11 52,164 8,455 76,181 12,347
12 525,272 85,136 870,742 141,130
13 2,825,153 457,901 2,825,153 457,901
3,402,589 551,492 3,772,076 611,378
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
14 4,490,006 727,740 4,490,006 727,740
14.1 17,918,369 2,904,209 17,918,369 2,904,209
14.2 3,600,000 583,488 3,600,000 583,488
15 31,816,968 5,156,894 23,528,080 3,813,431
15 - - 186,650 30,252
57,825,343 9,372,332 49,723,105 8,059,121
16 17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
2025 29 2025 29
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IE
2024 2023

88,636,558 14,366,213 70,149,292 11,369,797
(26,514,745) (4,297,510) (29,354,208)  (4,757,730)
62,121,813 10,068,703 40,795,084 6,612,067
(39,300, 699) (6,369, 857) (32,819,769)  (5,319,428)
22,821,114 3,698,846 7,975,315 1,292,639

664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390

977,329 158,405 - -
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
(1,173,690) (190, 232) (690,751) (111,957)
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
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IE

2024 12 31

2023 4,490,002 727,740 - - 3,600,000 583,488 16,234,938 2,631,359 - - 24,324,940 3,942,586
- - - - - - 7,293,142 1,182,072 - - 7,293,142 1,182,072
4 1 17,918,369 2,904,209 - - - - - - 17,918,373 2,904,210
- - - - - - - - 186,650 30,252 186,650 30,252

2023 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 23,528,080 3,813,431 186,650 30,252 49,723,105 8,059,121
- - - - - - 23,288,888 3,774,663 - - 23,288,888 3,774,663
- - - - - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200) - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200)
- - - - - - - - (186,650)  (30,252) (186,650) (30,252)

2024 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 31,816,968 5,156,894 - - 57,825,343 9,372,332
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
90,912 14,735 273,719 44,364
245,988 39,870 7,811 1,266
(664,135) (107,643) (8.578) (1,390)
(186,650) (30,252) 186,650 30,252
23,948,693 3,881,604 8,443,495 1,368,522
(7.368,038)  (1,194,212)  (1,194,482) (193,602)
(2,570,645) (416,650) 7,028,370 1,139,158
14,010,010 2,270,742 14,277,383 2,314,078
(1,514,001) (245,389)  (2,195,115) (355,784)
12,496,009 2,025,353 12,082,268 1,958,294
49,848 8,079 (282,805) (45,837)
664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390
(12,597) (2,042) (83,390) (13,516)
- - (2,825,153) (457,901)
- - (89,780) (14,552)
(9,000,000)  (1,458,720) - -
(8,298,614)  (1,345,039)  (3,272,550) (530,415)
- - 17,918,369 2,904,209
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) - -
_ . 4 1
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) 17,918,373 2,904,210
(10,802,605)  (1,750,886) 26,728,091 4,332,089
44,086,186 7,145,489 17,358,095 2,813,400
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
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IAS 21 2025
IFRS IFRS 2026
IFRS 18 2027
2.4
2.5
2.6
AIFM UCITS
NAV
EMIR FATCA MLRO
IFRS 15
¢!
(¢
G
4

G
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10
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2.11

RSU ESPP

2.12
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ECL
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2.17
2.18
3.
3.1
2024 2023
88,636,558 70,149,292
AIFM UCITS
NAV
2024 2023
1,817,362 1,414,589
1,353,311 824,157
5,847,727 4,871,299
79,044,081 62,773,445
406,645 265,802
207 -
167,225 -
88,636,558 70,149,292
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4.
4.1
2024 2023
13,531,552 8,589,995
1,519,990 927,918
1,015,322 648,979
326,576 196,013
16,393,440 10,362,905
4.2
2024 2023
886,624 536,875
45,437 25,750
8,760 4,114
63,947 28,907
1,004,768 595,646
2024 12 31 37,500
2023 91,875
4.3
2024 2023
147 96
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20

4.1

4.2
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2024 2023
40,000 53,187
- 9,847
90,912 273,719
275,726 59,507
245,988 7,811
(303,176) 394,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784,165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004,768 595,646
3,139,576 3,254,080
39,300,699 32,819,770
742,847 560,848
2,048,618 1,850,996
23,723,280 26,942,363
26,514,745 29,354,207

977,329 2023
2024 2023

18,842 8,578

638,964 -

6,329 -

664,135 8,578
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7.
7.1
2024 2023
1,173,690 690,751
1,173,690 690,751
7.2
2024 2023
12.5 2023 12.5 22,821,114 7,975,315
25% 2023 25 664,135 8,578
23,485,249 7,983,893
12.5 2023 :12.5 2,852,639 996,914
25 2023 25 166,034 2,145
3,018,673 999,059
(1,155,673) -
(689,310) (308, 308)
1,173,690 690,751
8.
2024 2023
20,309,071 31,568,439
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,086,186
CBI 18
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 2023
A2 AL
A3 AL
HSBC pa3 Aa3
9.
2024 2023
* 6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
1,972,314 386,959
511,742 171,431
1,026,312 160,970
15,025,089 12,137,930
425,046 685,453
29,729,991 22,026,305
* 329,650 2023 59,507
10.
2024 2023
* 9,000,000 -
9,000,000 -
3.5
11.
2024 95,863 95,863
12,597 12,597
2024 12 31 108,460 108,460
2024 19,682 19,682
36,614 36,614
2024 12 31 56,296 56,296
2024 12 31 52,164 52,164
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2023 12,472 12,472
83,391 83,391
2023 12 31 95,863 95,863
2023 11,871 11,871
7,811 7,811
2023 12 31 19,682 19,682
2023 12 31 76,181 76,181
12.
2024 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
- (49,848) (49,848)
2024 12 31 89,780 1,318,445 1,408,225
2024 9,015 578,316 587,331
47,084 248,538 295,622
2024 12 31 56,099 826,854 882,953
2024 12 31 33,681 491,591 525,272
2023 89,780 1,085,488 1,175,268
- 282,805 282,805
2023 12 31 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
2023 - 313,611 313,611
9,015 264,705 273,720
2023 12 31 9,015 578,316 587,331
2023 12 31 80,765 789,977 870,742
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13.
2023 19 BTA
IE LFMSIL 2023 10 BTA
CBI
LFMSIL 2024 12 31 2,825,153
2023 2,825,153
14.
2024 2023
100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 4,490,006 4,490,006
14.1
2024 12 31 17,918,369
2023 17,918,369
14.2
15.
2024 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
- (186,650) (186, 650)
23,288,888 - 23,288,888
(15,000,000) - (15,000,000)
2024 12 31 31,816,968 - 31,816,968
2023 16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142

2023 12 31 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
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16.
2024 2023
2,095,493 800,539
4,689,928 5,043,387
1,737,517 -
434,036 492,327
8,633,844 13,825,209
17,590,818 20,161,462
17.
2024 2024 2024
_ (8,054) 18,868
168,729 - 168,729
UK - (1,978,187) (137,473)
IE - (5,278,287) 1,273,576
IE 512 (56,580) (56,068)
UK 653 (7,759) (14,077)
_ - 23,804
Us ( )
- (12,289) (29,540)
IE - (121,745) (143,729)
Lux
93 - 93
208 (642,996) 142
IE - (108,563) (624,897)
UK 96 (1,046,882) 1,230,113
USA - (26,075) -
IE 17,871 (1,138,150) (1,206,219)
UK 105,980 (131,202) (112,179)
Lux 103,730 (1,444,959) (783,890)
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39,858 - 39,858
- - (190, 869)
- (4,780,799) (1,171,272)
- - 9,000,000
- - 79,559
- (1,639) (1,434)
- - 881,593
- - 10,452
- - 5,098
- - (14,479)
- - (20,000)

2023 2023 2023
- (723,862) 28,755
- (2,360,500) (182,756)
- (6,645,508) (2,750,726)
- (8,422) (8,422)
- (1,623) (2,065)
- - (18,037)
- (42,961) 233
- (1,192) 10,266
- (383,030) -
- (5,073) 341,866

163,837 (1,338,856) -
- (727,502) (459,989)
- (105,108) -
- - (210,981)
- - (210,576)
- (3,594,896) -
- - 332,028
- - 10,452
- - 2,023
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- - (11,403)
KB
- - (920,288)
L
w - (571,319) -
16 2024 12 31
18.
18.1
18.1.1
2024 2023
33,283,581 44,086,186
6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
3,510,368 719,360
15,025,089 12,137,930
9,000,000 -
71,588,526 65,427,038
2024 2023
7,231,057 6,994,532
(329,650) (59,507)
6,901,407 6,935,025
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18.1.2

2024 12 31 17,590,817
2023 20,161,462

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

18.1.6
CBI

CBI EU 2013/36/EU
EU NO 575/2013

17,087,153 2023
16,399,659

19.

2024

2024 12 31

20.
2024 12 31 2023
21.
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDAT CAT

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Maotes £ €
Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents B 33,283,581 44,086, 186
Trade and other receivables 9 20,720,991 22,026,305
Loans and borrowings 10 Q000,000 -
Total current assets 72,013,572 665,112,491
Mon-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 11 52,164 76,181
Intangible assels 12 525,272 B70,742
Ceoodwill 13 2,825,153 2825153
Total non-current assets 3A02,589 3772076
Tokal assets 75,416,161 69,854,567
Equity and hiabilities
Equity
Share capital 14 4.490,006 4. 490,006
Share premium 14.1 17,918,365 17,918, 365
Capital contribution 14.2 3,600,000 3,601,000
Retained carnings 15 31,816,065 23,528,080
Mher reserves 15 - 186,650
Total equity 57,825,343 49,723,105
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 17,500 815 200,161,462
Total current liabilities 17,590,818 20,161,462
Total liabilities 17,590,815 20,161,462
Total equity and liabilities 75,416,161 69,884,567

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Rigad bry: S
rﬁ S Jawes Al
Director Director
Date: 29 Apnil 2025 Date: 29 April 2025

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.
12
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
MNotes £ €
Continuing operations:
Revenue 3 85,636,558 70,149,292
Cost of sales 5 (26,514,745)  (29,354,208)
Gross profit 62,121,813 40,795,084
Administrative expenses 5 (39,300,609)  {32,819,769)
Operating profit 22821114 7975315
Finance income & 6hd, 135 B578
Other income 5 977,329 -
Profit before income tax 24,462,578 7,983,893
Income tax 7 (1,173,.650) (69),751)
Profit for the financial year 23,288,585 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 23,258,885 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 23,283,858 7,293,142

Al results have boen generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying moles are an fntegral part of these finamrcial statements.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Share Share Capital Retained Other
capital premium  contributions carmings TESETVES Total
£ £ € 3 € €
As at 1 January 2023 4,490,002 - 3,600,000 16,234,938 - 24,324,940
Profit for the financial year - - - T.H3,142 - T.H3,142
lssue of share capital 4 17,918,364 . = . 17,918,373
- - - 186,650 186,650

Unrealised currency gain

4,450,006 17,518 3659 3,600,000 23,528,080 186,650 48,723,105

As at 31 December 2023

- . 2328888 . 23288888
- < (15,000,000} < (15,000,000}
. . - {1B6,65(1) {186,65(0)

Prodit for Hhe financial year
tayment of dividends
Unrealised currency gainloss

As at 31 December 2024 4,490,006 17,918,369 3,600,000 31,616,968 - 57,825,343

The weconpunrying notes are an integr park of these fmancin! stitements
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation

Depreciation - owned assets

Finance income

Unrealised currency (loss)/gain

Met cash flows generated by operating activities
Change in operating assets and liabilitics:
Movement in frade and other receivables
Mowement in trade and other payables

Met cash generated by in operations
Income bax paid

Met cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Mowvement in incremental costs o new contracts
Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of Goodwill

Purchase of intangible assets

Movement in Loans and Bomrowings

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share premium

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Met cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the financial year

2024 2023
Motes [3 3
24,462,578 7083803
0,972 273719
245,988 7811
(664,135) (8,578)
(186,650) 186,650
23,948,643 8,443,495
(7.368038)  (1,194,452)
(2,570,645) 70028, 370
14,010,000 14,277,383
(L514.001)  (2.195.115)
12,496,009 12,082,268
45.R48 {282,805)
i, 135 £,578
{12,597} (83,390
- (2,825,153)
- (9, 750)
(9, M0, 006N -
18,298,614) 13,272,5500
= 17,918,368
(15,000,000} -
- 4
{15,000,0000 17,918,373
(10,802,605) 26,728,091
44,0186, 156 17,358,005
8 33,283,581 44,066,186

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDATCET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION

Wavstone Management Company (IE) Limited (the "Company™) is a company limited by shares
incorporated and domiciled in Ireland. The Company is tax resident in Ireland and the registered numbser
and registered address can be found on the Company Information page.

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
{or TTFRS™).

22 Basis of preparation

The princpal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented and the prior financial year,
unless otherwise stated.

These finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finandal Reporting
Standards, International Acoounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(LASH) as adopled by the European Union {("IFRSs7) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2004
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The finandial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for certain fimandial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts
of fair values at the end of cach reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below,

The financial statements are presented in Euro (€) . which is the Company’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Amsunts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest Euro (€).
23 Changes in accounting policies
a MNew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024

In the current fimandal year, the Company has applied the below amendments o IFRS Standards and
Interpretations that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January 2024, Their
adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

The following amendments had no material impact on the Company's financial stafements.

+ 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and Mon-Current Liabilities with Covenants (effective for annual  peniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024).
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDAT CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
13 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
a Mew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024 (continued)

+ IFRS 7 Finandal Instruments: Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arramgements (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

by Mew standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

At the dabe of approval of these fimandal statements, several new, but not vet effective, standards and
amendments o existing standards, and  Interpretations have been published by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASE™). Mone of these standards or amendments to existing standards
hawe been adopted early by the Company.

The Directors anticipate that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning
on or after the effective date of the pronounoement.

Standard Title of Standard or Interpretation Effective date

Amendments o [AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments:  IFRS 9 and | Classification and  Measurement of | 1 January 2026

IFRS 7 Finanaal Instruments

Mew Standard: IFRS 18 Presentation  and  Disclosure  in| 1 January 2027
Fimangial Statements

For all the stanclards and amendments listed above, the Directors do not expect any material impact.
24 Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management b0 make udgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and
assumplions.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including reasomable expectation of current period’s estimates. This note provides a summarny of
the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in other notes,

The Directors have considered where significant judgement and key estimates are included in the
financial statements and these include the following:
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

*  Incremental cost to new contracts - The deferred contract costs relate to capitalised
commissions paid to staff, which the Company expects to recover over the life of the asset.
Dhirectors have estimated that 5 vears is an appropriate period of amortisation. Where cortain
contracts have a definite useful life, the incremental oosts have been amortised over the
appropriate life of the contract.

25 Goodwill

Coodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net tangible and intangible
assets acquired in business acquisitions and related costs of acquisition. Goodwill s subject to annual
impairment tests,

Coodwill is measured as the estimated future economic benefits which will be generated byv an
acquisition in the future, Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in drcumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carryving
armount of goodwill relating to the entity sold,

26 Revenue recognition

Revenue consists of management fees and set-up fees carned in respect of the Company acting as an
ATFM and UCITS Management Cnmrmn:,.l to imvestment funds, bank interest and certain sundr:y income,
which is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the financial
vear when it is carned, Bevenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured.

Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund’s Net Asset Value (or "NAVT), subject to
a i agreed fee,

Professional service foes
Professional services fees, such as EMIR, FATCA, Payroll, VAT, Company Secretarial and MLEO
support, are recorded by reference o the period of the service, Amounts camed but not yet billed are
recorded as acorued income, The Company primarily earns fixed annual fees or fised rate fees relating to
professional services.

The Company accounts for contracts with customers that fall within the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers only, when all of the following crteria are mek:

(1) Identifyving the contract with a customer.
(2) ldentifving the performance obligations,
(3) Determining the transaction price,
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
26 Revenue recognition (continued)
(4)  Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.
(5) Becognising revenue whenfas performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The amount of revenue that the Company recognises is measured based on the consideration specified in
contracts with customers. These contracts involve a series of services that are substantially the same and
the benefit of each service is received and consumed immediately. These contracts therefore consist of a
single performance obligation for which control is transferred over fime and revenue is reoognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of cach contract, This method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer
of goods or services becawse the work required does not vary significantly from month-to-month.

FPerformance obligations aend revertie Fecogrrition palicies
These services are recognised over the period for which they are provided. The revenue is accrued until
client invodces are issued. Bevenue billed but not vet considered carned is recorded as deferred revenue.

27  Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenditure incurred in the provision of services to
other group companies is recorded on a gross basis in accordance with the contractual arrangements in
place.

Included in cost of sales are costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid in respect of
client funds. These costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per revenue in Mole 3.

8 Employee benefit costs

The Cmupan}-' operates a defined contribution pension scheme. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Company pays fised conbribubions into a separate enbity and does not have any
legal or constructive obligations if the pension plan does not hold sufficient assets o pay all employees
the benefits relating fo employee service in the current and prior financial years. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Company. Contributions payable to the Company's pension schemse
are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period which they
relabe to.

Other long-term employee benefits pertain to equity held.
29 Taxation

Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated acoording to
local tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of Financial Position
date,
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
29 Taxation (continued)

Deterred tax is provided on timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the Statement of
Financial Positon date where transachions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the
furbure or a right to pay less tax in the future have ocourred at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Dreferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the years in
which the iming differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date. The Company has not adopted a
policy of discounting deferred tax assel and liabilities.

A deferred tax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

210 Foreign currencies

Assets ang liabilities in foreign currencies are ranslated into Euro at the rates of exchange ruling at the
Statement of Finandal Position date, Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Euro with an
appropriate rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction. Mon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are franslated
using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are faken
into account in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.,

211 Share based payments

Long=termy employee benefits pertaining to equity held typically refer o compensation or rewards
granted o employees in the form of equity-based instruments that vest over an extended period. These
benefits are designed fo incentivise and retain emplovees for the long term, aligning, their interests with
the Company’s sucoess. Equily-based compensation can come in various forms, such as stock oplions,
restricted stock units (RSUs), or emploves stock purchase plans (ESPPs).

The fair value of equity-based instruments is recognised as an employee benefils expense, with a
corresponding, increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting, period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting, conditions are 1o be satisfied. Ar the end of each period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected o vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions, b recgonises the impact of the revision o orginal cstimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a comesponding adjustment o equity.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments

Recognition
Financial assets and financial habalities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual prowisions of the financial instrument.

Purchases or sales of finandal assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recogniced on the trade date, e,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Iritial measureiment

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and finandial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deduded from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or finandal liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recogniscd immediately in the profit or boss,

Fimancial pssets - amortised cost
The Company's finandal assets met the following conditions and are classified into the amortised oost
category if:
*  They are held within a business madel whose objective is to hold the finangial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows.

*  The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the princ pal amount outstanding,

The financial assets held by the Company recognised at amorbised cost consist of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, ofher receivables, accrued income, amounts owed by group undertakings
and loans and borrowings. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction
cosls,

Cash represents cash at bank and deposits held on demand with financial institutions. Cash equivalents
represent short-term, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

In the presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash also includes bank overdrafts. Any such
overdrafts are shown within borrowings under ‘current liabilities’ on the Statement of Finandal Position.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets - amortised cost (contintied)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amorbised cost using the effective inferest method.
Discounting, is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. All revenue and expenses relating to
financial assets are recognised in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are not redassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting, period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets are measwred af fair valne trongh obher comprelensive incone if the belon condition s mef:
= The finandal asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
eollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assels.

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The Company does not currently hold any assets at fair value through other comprehensive inoomie.

Financial assels - business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the obpective of the business model inowhich a financial asset 15
held because this best reflects the way the business 15 managed, and information s provided to
management.

The information considerad indudes:
*  The stated policies and objectives and the operation of those polidies in practice.

+  The risks thal affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed.

*  How managers of the business are compensabed - eg. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected.

*  Transfors of financial assets to third partics in transactions  that do not qualify for
derecognition are nob considered sales for this purpose. consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Imypairment of fianciel nesets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs") on iinancial asscts measwared
at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal o lifetime ECLs, except
for financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default ocourring over the expected life of the
fimancial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at
12-month ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available withowt undue cost or effort.

This indudes both quantitative and qualifative information and amalysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
a specified amount of days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

*  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company i full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

+  The financial asset is more than 363 days past due.

Lifietime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument,

12-momth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorder period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
ioeaths).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether finandal assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the fnancial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a finandal asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
+  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
+ A breach of confract such as a default or being more than 1580 days past due.
= The restructuring of a loan or advance that is out of the normal practice.

+ It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptoy or other financial reorganisation.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financal asset is witten off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For customers, the
Company has a policy of assessing all balances greater than 120 days.

Fircial lalrilities - anortized cost

The Company's financial liabilities include frade pavables, other payables and accrued expenses.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. All interest-related charges are reported in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income,

Financial liabilities - fair value tirongh profil or loss

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through the profit or loss if it is cassified as
held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at
fair value through the profit or loss are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, induding any
interest expense, are recognised in the profit or loss. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
lnsses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
[profit or loss,

Derecognition of finamgial assets amd fimarecial labilifies
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the
financial assel exping, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a ransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are ransferred or in
which the Company neither transfors nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does nob retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position but retains cither all, or substantially all, of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not denccognised.

The Company derecognises a financial hability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a finanaal liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new finandal liabdlity
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognibion of a fimancial liability, the difference between the carrving amouant extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transforred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in the
profit or loss,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

MNon-fieancial instrinments

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

213 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at oost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at the
following annual rates in order to write off the cost less estimated residual value of cach asset over ils
estimated usceful life;

Fixtures & fittings - straight line over 5 vears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate,

The carrying values of are reviewed annually for impairment in periods if events or changes in
arcumskanoes indicate the carrying value may mot be recoverable,

The gains and loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrving amount of property and equipment, and is recognized net
within profit or loss,

214  Intangible assets

[ntangible assets are capitalised and amortised over their estimated  useful economic lives on a
straight-line basis:

Incremental costs o new contracts - straight line over 5 vears
Capatalised software = straight line over 3 vears

Maintenance costs relating o computer software programs are expensed to the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when incurred. Development expenditure represents internally
generated costs incurred on development activities. These costs have been capitalised in accordance with
the requirements of TAS 38 Intangible Assets.

In line with the requirements of IFES 15 Kevenue from Contracts with Customers, incremental
recoverable expenses relating to contracks with customers are capitalised and amortised over the expecied
life of the contract when these expenses are expected 1o be reoovered. Management estimates the
expected life of the contract, Where certain contracts have a definite usceful life, the incremental costs have
been amortised over the appropriate life of the contract,

219/282



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
215  Equity and reserves

All capital payments are booked to equity within share capital or share premium, Reserves consist of
accumulabed profit or loss as taken from the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income since date of incorporation.

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of now
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the prooeeds,

The share premium account includes the premium on issue of ordinary shares, net of any issue oosts.

Retained earnings represents accumulated comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial vear and prior
financial periods.

216 Impairment of assets, other than financial instruments

At the end of each financial vear, the Company conducts an impairment review of all ils assets and
assesses whether there is any indication that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than it carrying
amount, IF any such indication exists, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount, resulting in an impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the Statement

of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Whoere the droumstances causing an impairment of an asset, other than goodwill, no longer apply, then
the impairment is reversed through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An
impairmeent loss recognised fnr!.;nndwill 15 nob reversed in subsequent p-l:ri::rd.-'..

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwall and other intangible fixed assets is the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell, of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the
present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference
to the present value of the future cash flows of the Company which is considered by the Directors to be a
single cash generating unit.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
217  Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the obligation will be required to be settled, and a reliable cstimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are discounted when the tinwe
value of money is material,

Contingent liabilitics are potential obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurmence or non-eocurmence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the finandal statements. bul
are disdlosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
Contingent liabdlities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources embodying
coonomic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an owtfloww of future economic
benefits will be required, a provision is recognised, if a reliable estimate is available, in the financial
statements of the period in which the change in probability oocurs.

If the Company has provided for a provision or contingent liability or asset, management estimate the
fair value, using the information made available to them, and probable expedted cash flow advised to
them by consulted professionals.,

218 Going concerm

The Directors are nol aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, Therefore, the financial stabements continue o be
prepared on a going concern basis,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

3 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
31 Segmental reporting

The breakdown of the Company revenue streams is s follows:

2024 2023
€ €
Management and Helated fees 88,636,558 70,149,292

The Company is authorised and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investment
funds, providing fund management and other adtivities. Turnover comprises management fees and
seb-up fees, Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund's MNet Asset Value {or
“NAV"Y, sulbgect boa minimuom agreed foe.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers by geographical market is given below:

2024 2023
£ €
Cayman Islands 1,517,362 1,414,589
France 1,353,311 824,157
Luxembourg 584777 4 171,205
Republic of Ireland 79,044,081 62,773,445
Spain 46,645 265,802
Switzerland 207 .
United Kingdom 167,225

86,036,555 70,149,292

7
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, EMPLOYEES AND DINRECTORS
4.1 Staff costs

Staff costs during the financial year comprise:

2024 2023

13 €

Wages and salanies 13,531,552 8,580 905
Social security costs 1,519, 9K 927 918
Pension oosts 1,015,322 648,979
326,576 190,013

Benefits
16,393,440 10,362,905

4.2 Directors” remuneration

Drirectors’ remuneration during the fimamcial VEAr Comprise:

024 2023
€ €

Drirectors’ remuneration
Directors’ emol uments B86,624 530,875
Directors’ pension contributions 45437 25,750
Directors’ benefits 3,760 4114
Diirectors’ socal security costs 03,947 28,907
L0, 765 545,046

Remuneration of Directors is disclosed above. Other than noted above, no expenses, share options or
other remuneration was paid or awarded to the Directors during the finandal year. The amounts
outstanding to Directors as at 31 December 2024 was €37,500 (2023: €91,875).

43 Number of employees
The average number of emplovess (including executive Directors) during the finandal year was as
followws:
2024 023
147 S

Management and staff
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

5 PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

The profit before income tax is stated after charging/{orediting):

Administrative expenses
Aundilor’s remieration

For services as auditor

For taxation compliance
Amortisation

Bad debt

Deprecation - owned assets
Foreign exchange (gam)/loss
Legal and professional
Recharges from group companies
Staff costs (Mobe 4.1)

Director costs (Mote 4.2)
Other expenses
Total administeative expenses

Cost of sales

Directors’ fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Audit and accounting fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Other cost of sales
Total cost of sales

2024 2023

€ €

40,000 53,187

- 9847

9,812 73,719
275,726 59,507
245,088 7E1
(303,176} 304,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784, 165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004, 768 595, 646
3,139,576 3,254,080
349,300,659 32,819,770
742,847 51, Bt
2.048,618 1,850,994
23,723,280 26,942 363
26,514,745 29,354,207

Other cost of sales constitutes costs paid by the Company in respect of the Waystone platform funds
(umbrella funds that are managed by Waystone, but which host multiple investment managers and
investment advisors on individual sub-funds) and certam dient funds (whene the Company receives a
management fee and pays cerfain expenses in respect of the client out of the management fee). These
oosts of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per turmover in Note 3 above,

Orther income includes insurance proceeds received as compensation for legal expenses incurred, relating
to proceedings that were served on the Company by a conbractual counterparty. Other income for the

financial vear was €977,329 (2023 €Nil) . See Note 2.

29
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, FINANCE INCOME ANTY COST

2024 2023
€ €

Finance ncome:
Deposit account interest 15,842 8578
Interest income on cash equivalents 638, Y04 -
Interest income on intercompany loans 6,329 -
Met finance incomef{cost) Bid, 135 8,578

30
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

7. INCOME TAX

7.1 Analysis of tax charge

Current tax:
Income fax current financial year

Total tax charge

7.2 Factors affecting the tax expense

2024 2023

€ €
1,173,690 590,751
1,173,690 690,751

The tax assessed for the financial vear is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the Republic of

[reland. The difference is explained below:

Profit before income tax taxable at 12.5% (023 12.5%)
Profit before inconie tax table at 25% (2023: 25%)
Profit for the financial year

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of

corporation tx in the Republic of Ireland of 12.5% (2023: 12.5%)

Profit before tax multiplied by 25% (2023: 25%:)

Effect of:

Other tax effects, including Group loss relief
(Owverpunder-provision in prior finandal year
Income tax expense

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Cash equivalents

2024 2023

€ €
22821114 7975315
6,135 §578
23,485,249 7083893
2,852,630 005, 914
166,034 2,145
308,673 04, (150
(1,155,673) -
(689, 310) {3008, 308)
1,173,650 690,751
2024 2023

€ £
0,308,071 31,568,430
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,066,156

Please view Mote 18 disclosing the Company's CBI minimum capital requirements.

3l
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The credit risk on cash transactions is mitigated by transacting, with counterparties that are regulated
enfities subject to prudential supervision, or with high oredit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. The credit rating, for 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

2024 023
Cash held at Allied Irish Bank A2 Al
Cash held at Bank of Ireland A3 Al
Cash held at HSBC Aad Aad
9, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2024 2023

€ €

Current:
Trade receivables® 6,500,407 6,935,025
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,508,081 1,548,537
Other receivables 1,972,314 386,959
Income fax receivable 511,742 171,431
VAT 1,026,312 164,971
Acorued income 15,025, 09 12,137,930
Prepayments 425,046 6E5,453

29,729,991 22,026,305

* Trade receivables is net of provision for bad debts amounting to (E329,650) (2023: €39,507)
Amounts owed by group companies are interest free, unseoured and pavable on demand,
10, FINANCIAL ASSETS - BORROWINGS AND LOANS

Company loans and borrowings consist of:

2024 2023
£ €

Current:
Intercompany loans Q000,000 -
4,000, (00 -

Loan is subject bo 3.5% interest per annum, is unsecured and payable on demand.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
and
fittings Total
£ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 05,563 95,803
Additions 12, 597 12,597
As at 31 December 2024 108,460 108,460
Depreciation
As al 1 January 2024 19,682 19,682
Charge for the financial vear 3,014 o614
As at 31 December 2024 56,296 56,296
Net book value
As at 31 December 2024 52,164 32,164
Fixtures
ang
fithings Total
13 €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2023 12,472 12472
Additions H3,.391 #3301
As at 31 December 2023 95,863 95,863
Depreciation
Asat 1 January 2023 11,871 11,871
Charge for the financial vear 7A11 7811
As at 31 December 2023 19,652 19,682
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 76,181 Th181

33
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Incremental
Capitalised costs to new
software contracts Total
€ £ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 29,750 1,368,293 1438073
Additions [ (Dispozals) = (49 538) (49, 545)
As at 31 December 2024 849,760 1,318,445 1,408,225
Amortisation
Asalb 1 January 2024 9,015 57H 316 587,331
Charge for the financial year 47,084 248,538 295,622
As at 31 December 2024 56,0199 826,854 352,953
Net book value
Asg at 31 December 2024 33,681 491,591 525272
Incremental
Capitalised  costs o new
software contracts Total
3 € €
Cost
As at 1 January 2023 859,750 1,085, 488 1,175,268
Additions [ (Disposals) - 252 805 282 805
As at 31 December 2023 59,750 1,368,293 1458073
Amortisation
Asat 1 January 2023 - EIENO 33611
Charge for the financial vear 9,015 264,705 273,720
Asg at 31 December 2023 9,015 578,316 587331
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 80,765 TR9,977 870,742

The incremental cost b new contracts related to capitalised commissions paid to business development
staff.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

13 GOODWILL

Per the Business Transfer Agreement (BTAT) executed on 19 April 2023, certain dients of Link Fund
Manager Solutions (1E) Limited ("LFMSIL™) novated to the Company on % October 2023 by way of a
Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA) and Central Bank of Ireland ("CBI™) Change of Service Provider.
The Company purchased the assumed assets and liabilities of LEMSIL. As at 31 December 2024, the
Goodwill has a value of €2,525,153 (2023; €2,825,153).

14. SHARE CAPITAL
MNumber of MNumber of Number of

shares shares shares fully MNominal 2024 2023
authorised issued paid value € €
Ordinary 100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 o4, 4500, 006 4,40, 006

141 Share premium

Share premium represents the excess price of the issued shares over their par value. Share premium as at
31 December 2024 is €17, 918,369 (2023: €17 918,369).

142 Capital contribution

The Capital contribution is additional capital provided by the Parent Company Clifton Directors Limited.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

15. RESERVES

Asat] January 2024
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit fior the financial year
Divicend

As at 31 December 2024

Asat 1 January 2023
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit for the financial vear
As at 31 December 2023

Reserves Deseription and purpose
Retained carnings

clsewhere,
Other reserves

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current:

Trade payables

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other pavables

Social security and other taxes
Accrued expenses

Retained Other
earnings TESETVES Total
3 £ €
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
. (186,650 {186,650)
23,288,888 - 23,285, 8RR
{ 15,000,000 - (15,000,000
31,816,968 - 31,816,968
16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730

All other net gainsflosses and  transactions with owners not  recognised

Other reserves that don't fit into retained earnings or translation reserves.

2024 2023

£ L3
2095,493 M), 535%
4,689,925 5,043,387
1.737.517 -
434,006 492,327
B.633,844 13,825,209
17,55, 818 20,161,462

Amounts owed to Group companies ane interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party relationships with its shareholders, Directors and other key management
personnel, and related undertakings of the Waystone group.

Drirectors” remuneration and transactions are disclosed in Note 4. The Directors’ remuneration discosed
in Mote 4 represents the total compensation paid to key management personnel.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the financial yvear, the Company entered into the following transactions with fellme group

COMpRnies:
Administrative
Revenue expenses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
Mature of year ended  year ended (owed o)
Intercompany 2024 2024 2024
Transaction 3 £ €
‘Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Net Beceivable - (8,054) 18,868
Wavstone Asset Management (Cayman) Lid — Receivable 168,729 - 168,729
Wavstone C.apital Solutions (LB Limited MNet I’;ly;lhlc - (1,978,157} (137,473)
Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited  Net Receivable - (5,278,287} 1273576
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (IE) Limited  MNet Payable 512 (56,580) (546, 0068)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Payable 653 {7,759} (14,077}
Waystone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - - (23,804)
Waystone Compliance Solulions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . (12,289) (29,5400
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (121,743) (143,729
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Receivable a3 - a3
Waystone Fund Services (Switeerland) 5.4 Net Receivable 08 {642 GG 142
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited Payable - (108,563) (B24,597)
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Net Beoeivable 96 (1,046.552) 1,230,113
Waystone Governance (USA) Ine Expense - (26,075) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limnited Net Payable 17871 (LI38150)  {1,206,219)
Wavstone Management (UK) Limited Net Payable 105,950 (131,202) (112,17%)
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable 103,730 (1,444,959) (7R3, 5000
Waystone Services (Lux) SA Receivable 39,858 - 39,858
Sigma Irish Topeo Limited Payable . - {1540, B0t
Sigma Irish Acquico Limited Met Payable . (4780799 (1,171,272)
Sigma Irish Acquice Linited Loan - - EALLARENL
Wavstone Administration Solutions (Lux)5A  Receivable - - 79,550
Wavstone Administration Solutions (US) Inc Payable . {1,639) {1,434)
Fing BidCo Limited Receivable . - BE1,593
Fing MidCao Limited Receivable . - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Reoeivable - - 5
King TopCo Limited Payable - - (14,47%)
KB Associates Consulting Lid Payable - - (20,000

a7
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Administrative
Revenue EXpEnses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
yearended  year ended (owed to)
Nature of 2023 2023 023
Transactions € £ €
Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Met Receivable - (723,862) 28,755
Waystone Capital Solutions (LK) Limited Met Payable . (2,360,500} {182,756)
‘Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (6,645508)  (2,730,726)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Fayable - (8,422) (5,422}
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - (1,623} (2,065)
Waystone Compliance Solutions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . - (18,037)
Wavstone Corporate Services (IE) Limited  MNet Receivable - [42961) 233
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Met Receivable - (1,192} 10,266
Waystone Fund Services (Switzerland) 5.A Expenses - (383,030 -
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited  Net Beceivable . (3,073) 341,866
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Revenug/Expenses 163,857 (1,338.856) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limited Net Payable . (727,502) {459, 985)
Waystone Management (LK) Limited Expenses - (105, 10%) -
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable . - (210,961)
Sigma lrish Acquico Limited Met Payable . - (210,576)
Waystone Administrabion Solutions (Lux) 54 Expenses - (3.594.896) -
King BidCo Limited Met Beceivable - - 332,028
King MidCo Limited Met Receivable = - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Met Beorivable - - 2023
Fing TopCo Limited Met Payable - - (11,403)
KB Associabes Consulting Lid Met Payable . - {50, 288
Waystone Holdings {Lux) Sarl Expenses - (371.319) -

Administration cxpenses relating to servioes provided by other companies are disclosed in Mote 5. Please
also refer to Mote 16 for amounts payable to group companies, The Company Secretary held shares in
other Group companies of the wider Waystone Group at 31 December 2024
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS
181  Financial risk management

The Directors have overall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management
obpechives and policies and, whilst retaming ulbmate responsibility for them, it has delegated  the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives
and policies o the Company's finance function.

The Company has exposure to the following risks:

+ Credit risk:

+ Liquidity risk;

* Market risk;

+ Foreign exchange nsk;
& [nterest rate risk and

+ Capital management risk.
1511 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the ﬂtmpany if a customer or counterparty o a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is mainly exposed to oredit risk from
credit sales. [t is Company policy, to assess the oredit nisk of new customers before entering into contracts,

The Company has credit risk exposure o banks and other affiliates arising from funds deposited with
these institutions. The Company mitigate the risk to its funds by ensuring that counterparties are well
capitalised institutions,

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum coredit exposure. The maximum
exposure to oredit risk at the reporting date was:

2024 2023

£ €

Cash and cash equivalents 13,283,581 44,086,156

Trade receivables 6,901 407 6,935,025

Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,868,051 1,548,537

Ohher receivables 3510368 719,360

Accrued income 15,025, 06 12,137 950
Loans and borrowings 4,000,000

71,588,526 65,427,038
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1811 Credit risk (continued)

The Company manages credit risk in respect of fees receivable from clients by only delivering servioes to
reputable and financially stable clients. Management has reviewed the fee receivable balance and
estimated an appropriate expected credit loss balanoe that reflects historical, current and forward-looking
information reasonably expected to be known at the date these fimancial statements were authorized.

2024 2023

£ €

Trade receivables, gross 7,231,057 540, 532
Bad debt provision (329,650 (549,507)
Trade receivables, net 6,901,407 6,935,025

15.1.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises from the Company management of working capital. It is the risk that the Company
will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company policy is to
ensure that it will always have sufficient cash fo allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

The Company’s liquidity position is monitored regulacly by management and is reviewed on a periodic
basis by the Board.

As at 31 December 2024, the anbiapated undiscounted cash flows amounting to €17, 590817 are payable
les than one vear (2023 €20,161,462).

18,13 Market risk

The Company does not hold any direct interests in underlying funds under management on its Statement
of Finandal Position and none of the Compamny’s current assels are materially directly affected by
financial markets. Market volatility since the finandial year end has not had any material impact on the
Company to date.

1814 Foreign exchange risk

The Company holds a significant amount of its net assets in Euro but has reoeivables and deposits in
United States (or "US") Dollars and Great British Pounds (or "GEM). The forcign exchange risk on these
LS Dollar balances is kept to a minimum through regular conversions and balancing holdings in Euro
equivalent amounts, This serves to minimise the matenal foreign exchange risks. Upon review,

management have determined that there are no material reccivable balances exposed o foreign exchange
risk at the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been performed,
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1815 Interest rabe risk

The Company is not exposed lo significant interest rate risk and management does not consider interest
rate risk to be a significant risk of the Company.

18.1.6 Capital risk management

The Company is subject to externally imposed mininum capital requirements by the CEI and these are
reviewed on a monthly basis by the senior management within the Company and the Board. The
Company’s regulatory capital requirements are considered in the budgeting process as per regulatory
puidance.

The Company's CELminimum capital requirements are as prescribed under the EL Capatal Requirements
Drirective (Directive M 3/36/EL) and regulation (EU) NO 5752013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investments firsts (logether, the "Capital Requirements™). The Company is required to
hold the minimum level of capilal as sel oul in legislation at all times and is required o submil capital
returns o the Central bank on a periodic basis, For the purpose of this requirement the capital required is
held via cash and cash equivalents, As at the end of the financial vear the Central Bank mininum capital
requirements was €17, 087,153 (2023: €16, 399 639).

The Company is mecting its objective for managing capital through holding cash on deposit and cash and
cash equivalents above the minimum capital regquirement.,

14, CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company has regulatory, confractual, and other duties and obligations arising in the ordinary course
of its business. In its capacity as General Partner to investment limited partmerships (the "Partnerships”),
the Company is liable for the debts and obligations of the Partnerships where the Partnerships have
insufficient property to meet its debts and obligations. These are in the nature of contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities may or may not be covered by the Company’s professional indemnity insurance,

In August 2024, proceedings were served on the Company by a conlractual counterparty. Waystone
Management Company (IE) Limited has delivered a full and robust defence to these proceedings and
docs not consider it probalile that it will result i an outflow of economic resources. As at 31 December
2024, no provisions have been made in these financial statements. Any possible obligation (if any) is
uncertain and cannot be measured with sufficient reliabilitv. In addition, any amount which could arise
as aresult of this contingent liability would be reduced by the insurance cover in plage.

0. CAPMITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company had o material capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 (2023: €Nil).
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

21. INDEMNIFICATIONS

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into confracts that confain a variety of
representations, warranties and obligations which provide general indemnifications. The Company’s
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may
be made against the Company that have not yet ocourred. However, based on experience, the Company
exapects the nisk of loss to be remote and has professional indemnity insurance in place to mitigate these
risks. Liabilities incurred may or may not be covered by the Company's professional indemmity
INSUranog.

22, ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate Parent Company of the Company, as at 31 December 2024 was Clifton Directors Limited,
which is a company incorporated in 2007 in Ireland. Clifton Directors Limited held 106006 of the share
capital of the Company, On 1 January 2025, as per Part 9 of the Companies Act 2004, Clifton Dhirectors
Limited merged with King Topoo Limibed,

The ultimate parent undertaking is Sigma Irish Topoo Limited, the parent company of the Waystone
Group, The registered address is 4th Floor, 35 Shelbourne Boad, Dublin 4, Treland, There is no ultimate
confrolling party.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sigma Inish
Topoo Limited, which is a company incorporated in Ireland in 2021, Al companics ultimately owned by
Sigma Irish Topoo Limited are collectively known to be a subsidiary of the Waystone Group.

Accounts for these entities can be olained from Companies Registration Office Ireland.
23, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

[In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to 29 April 2025, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued and are not aware of any other subsequent events, other than the disclosure below, which would
require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Effective 31 March 2025, Rachel Wheeler resigned as non-executive director and  Andrea Oman was
appointed as non-execubive director of the Company.

The Directors note the recent volatility in financial markets caused by the trade tariffs announced by the
United States of America and whilst any fall in markets will negatively impact the Company’s assels
under management and  therefore revenue, the Dhrectors remamn sabisfied i the commeraal and
operational resilienoe of the Company. As with all macrocoonomic events the Dhrectors remam active in
appraising the risks and opportunitics they bring,.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements were approved on 29 April 2025

43
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services Ireland Limited

2025 6,750,000 10 926

1995 29

IE

Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited

2025 1,635,000 6,500

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2025 13,300,000 19 8,862
1995 29

2025 836 1,600

2025 875 5,000
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at 31 December 2024 and the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the financia year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the material
accounting policy information.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and FRS 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

In our opinion, Trust's financial statements:
give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trust Act 1990.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish Auditing and
Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA"), and the ethical pronouncements established by Chartered
Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors of the Manager (or the
“Directors’) use of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. The DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) will be put into liquidation following the Fund Maturity Date (that been the 25 July 2025)
and therefore this sub-fund is not a going concern.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

274/282



EDINETOIOOID)
00000000000000000000000000000(E35772)
Dooooooooooooooooog

Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon including Management and Administration, the Investment Manager's
Report, Statement of Manager's Responsibilities and the unaudited appendices. The Manager isresponsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Date 11 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements of WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED (“the
company”)
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 31 December
2024 and of the profit for the financial year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and, in particular,
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements we have audited comprise:

the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;

the Statement of Financial Position;

the Statement of Changes in Equity;

the Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1 to 24, including material accounting policy information as set out in note 2.

The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by
the European Union (“the relevant financial reporting framework”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in the “Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for
the other information contained within the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and otherwise
comply with the Companies Act 2014, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on IAASA’s website at:
https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-statements. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

e In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements.

In our opinion, those parts of the directors’ report specified for our review, which does not include
sustainability reporting when required by Part 28 of the Companies Act 2014, have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Act 2014 which require us to report to you if,
in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by law are not made.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Brian Jackson
For and on behalf of Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm

Deloitte & Touche House, 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2

30 April 2025
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